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PART |
Item 1. Business of Netlist, Inc.
Overview

We design and manufacture high performance memdrgystems. We sell our subsystems to original eqeipt manufacturers, or OEN
in the server, high performance computing and conmiaations markets. We target applications withiest markets in which memory plays a
key role in enabling overall system performanceaim@ments. Our memory subsystems are incorporatechiultiple platforms at IBM, Dell,
Gateway and Hewlett-Packard and other OEMs. Ousygiems are designed and manufactured to spelyifacddress the high-performance
needs of these customers’ systems.

We collaborate with our OEM customers in the eatléages of their new product design cycles. @bilaboration provides us with
unique insight into the OEM’s system architectund gerformance requirements and expands our exisyistems expertise. In addition, we
have developed a portfolio of proprietary techn@sgnd design techniques to meet OEM needs, imgjwefficient planar design, alternative
packaging technigues and custom semiconductor.ldgi@ result, we are able to design applicaticecsiz memory subsystems with optimal
combinations of high memory density, small formtéachigh signal integrity, effective heat dissipatand low cost per bit. We also offer our
OEM customers flexible order fulfillment and rapigdnaround times.

We were incorporated in Delaware in June 2000 amgheenced operations in September 2000.

Our Solution

We provide high performance memory subsystemseaaéhnver, high performance computing and communitaimarkets. We utilize our
innovative and proprietary technology, as well asextensive systems expertise, to bridge the gapden industry standard approaches and
the requirements of complex OEM systems. Our apptio-specific solutions provide customers with fhiéiowing key benefits:

Highly Differentiated Memory Solutions Through Dé&aystomer EngagementWe work closely with our OEM customers, from the
earliest stages of new product definition througdhtamp up to mass production, to develop and eletipplication-specific memory
subsystems which address the full range of systehitacture and performance requirements. Our clos&aborative relationship with our
OEM customers give us early insight both into tlweirent needs and into future technology trenadsiddition, our in-depth systems expertise,
coupled with our ability to customize solutionsables our OEM customers to offer differentiateddoiais that feature high levels of
performance while improving reliability and, in seraases, reducing cost.

High Performance Through Proprietary Technologiesl ®esign Techniques.We have developed a portfolio of proprietary tedbgies
and design techniques to achieve optimal electrsigital strength and integrity, high memory denaitg improved heat dissipation. For
example, our innovative printed circuit board, @B designs enhance electronic signal integritpyahg our customers to design and market
products that operate at the highest commerciatylable speeds, such as the DDR2 specificatioigiwis designed to operate at speeds up to
800 MHz. Another technique we utilize is to embadgive devices within the PCB, thereby freeing atale board space to reduce form factors
and improve signal integrity. Our solutions alsdreds the system-level thermal issues encountél@dtaoperating speeds via such
innovations as planar designs and proprietary disaipation technologies that allow us to minintisat concentrations within the system.

High Quality and Reliability. We perform a full range of product reliabiligsting and share the results with our customeiemoon-
going basis. We use advanced design tools to aetyisamulate the




system performance targets of our customers aaddgore that our products comply with our customgpscifications. All of our memory
subsystems undergo both functional and system inulesting prior to delivery to our customers. Wenplement our test capabilities with
advanced imaging technology to inspect the quafityur micro ball grid array, or microBGA, asseneisliWe believe that our testing
procedures significantly enhance the quality afidlvéity of our products.

Rapid Order Fulfillment Capability. We operate our manufacturing facility in a mantat imaximizes our ability to meet changing
customer demand. Our turn-around times are typicale week or less, and in some cases as few aday&) which allows us to match
unforeseen customer demand and to provide our QiEtbmers with timely access to products.

Cost-Effective Memory SolutionsWe provide high performance memory subsystemdat we believe to be the lowest cost per bit for
many applications. Our portfolio of proprietary t@ologies and design techniques allow us to useeftective, current generation dynamic
random access memory integrated circuits, or DRAM, land in some cases avoid additional costs flumstacking to significantly lower the
cost of our memory subsystems. Additionally, theesior thermal characteristics and electronic digrtagrity of our subsystems helps OEMs
reduce costs through simplified system design.

Our Products

We are currently designing, manufacturing and sglinemory subsystems with speeds up to 667 MHzitilesup to 8 gigabytes, and
form factors as small as 0.72 inches, or 18.3 mdters, in height. Our products for the server makidress a broad variety of memory
capacity and configuration requirements, as wed hsoad range of server types, including towak4mounted, and blade servers. Our current
products primarily support double data rate, or DRl DDR2, DRAM technologies.

The following table lists representative productsrf our major families of high performance memarpsy/stems:

DDR2 Registered Dual In-line Memory Module

Density Height Speed (MHz) Applications

256MB 30mm 400/533 RAID Memory

512MB 30mm 400/533/667 Blade Server

512MB 18.3mm 400/533/667 Blade Server

1GB 18.3mm 400/533/667 Blade Server

1GB 30mm 400/533/667 1U, 2U+ Servers, Networkin
2GB 30mm 400/533/667 1U, 2U+ Servers, Networkin
2GB 18.3mm 400/533/667 Blade Servers, Networkir
4GB 30mm 400/533/667 1U, 2U+ Servers, Workstatiol
4GB 18.3mm 400/533 Blade Server

DDR2 Fully Buffered Dual In-line Memory Module

Density Height Speed (MHz) Applications

1GB 30mm 400/533/667 1U, 2U+ Servers, Workstatiol
2GB 30mm 400/533/667 1U, 2U+ Servers, Workstatiol
4GB 30mm 400/533 1U, 2U+ Servers, Workstatiol




DDR2 Unbuffered Dual In-line Memory Module

Density
256MB

512MB
1GB
2GB

Height
30mm

30mm
30mm
30mm

DDR2 Small Outline Dual In-line Memory Module

Density
1GB

2GB

Height
30mm
30mm

Speed (MHz) Applications
400/533/667 Workstations
400/533/667 Workstations
400/533/667 Workstations
400/533 Workstations

Speed (MHz) Applications

400/533/66
400/533

DDR Registered Dual In-line Memory Module

Density
1GB

1GB
2GB
2GB
2GB
4GB
4GB
8GB

Height
30mm
18.3mm
30mm
18.3mm
18.3mm
51mm
30mm
30mm

Speed (MHz)

Notebooks, Networkini
Notebooks, Networkini

Applications

400
400
400
400
400
400
400
400

DDR Unbuffered Dual In-line Memory Module

Density
1GB

2GB

Height
30mm
30mm

Speed (MHz)

1U, 2U+ Server:
Blade Servers, Networkir
1U, 2U+ Server:
Blade Servers, Networkir
Blade Servers, Networkir
1U, 2U+ Server:
1U, 2U+ Server:
1U, 2U+ Server:

Applications

400
400

DDR Small Outline Dual In-line Memory Module

Density
1GB

Technology

We have a portfolio of proprietary technologies dedign techniques and have assembled an engigeéeam with expertise in
semiconductor, printed circuit boards, memory setesy and system design. Our technology competeimziksle:

Very Low Profile Designs. We were the first company to create a 1 gigabenory subsystem in a form factor of less thanioale in
height. We believe our proprietary board desighmetogy is particularly useful in the rapidly growi blade server market, where efficient use
of motherboard space is critical. Our technology &ldowed us to decrease the system board spagiee@dor memory, and improve thermal
performance and operating speeds, by enablingusiomers to use alternative methods of compongatta

Proprietary PCB Designs. We utilize advanced, proprietary techniquesptinoize electronic signal strength and integritghivi a PCB.
These technigues include the use of 8- or 10-lagards, matching conductive trace lengths, a mzgchnumber of conductive connectors, or

Height
1.2

vias, and precise load balancing

Speed (MHz)

1U, 2U+ Servers, Workstatiol
1U, 2U+ Servers, Workstatiol

Applications

400

Notebooks, Networkini




to, among other things, help reduce noise and Eidsetween adjacent traces. In addition, our petgry designs for the precise placement of
intra-substrate components allow us to assembleanesubsystems with significantly smaller physisiak, enabling OEMs to develop
products with smaller footprints for their customer

Planar Design. Our planar solutions are designed to providé kiignsity solutions in a more cost-effective marthan traditional chip-
stacking. We believe traditional chip-stacking capresent up to 30% or more of the total costmeanory subsystem. Our planar solutions
achieve the same densities as chip-stacked modute$ so by leveraging our PCB design expertigdaoe ICs in two rows in the same plane
rather than on top of each other. Our planar memobgystem designs feature high memory capacityimiproved thermal characteristics by
dissipating heat uniformly throughout the PCB.

Advanced Planar Designs.We plan to extend our planar design capabilittedevelop very high density memory subsystemgsé&h
advanced planar designs may allow us to build merdsdlutions at lower costs compared to other pgingatechnologies. Additionally, these
advanced planar solutions may remove heat gendogtatemory components in a more effective manneércam be used to build
memory subsystems in a number of densities and factors.

IC Design Expertise. We have designed blocks of custom logic thattmmmplemented in a stand-alone IC or integratiéd ether
functional blocks in other ICs. We use these cudtugit blocks to effectively increase density aaduce costs by allowing the use of two
current-generation, lower density DRAM ICs in lielua single next-generation higher density IC.

Innovative Design Verification Tools.We use our innovative and proprietary DRAM Igatlulators during the product development
stage to carefully assess DRAM IC load balancingiilements in our memory subsystems. Our DRAM kiatlilators are mounted in a
memory subsystem in place of DRAM ICs to test tleeteonic signal strength and integrity of the meyndesign without disrupting signal
quality. This provides us with more accurate fee#ttthan that provided by conventional means becawesare able to measure the signals at
the precise point of origination.

Thermal Management DesignsWe design our memory subsystems to ensure effeeigedissipation. We use thermal cameras to o
thermal profiles of the memory subsystem duringdésign phase, allowing us to rearrange comporter@shance thermal characteristics and,
if necessary, replace components that do not npeeifecations. We use thermal simulation and madetioftware to create comprehensive
heat transfer models of our memory subsystems,iwdri@bles our engineers to quickly develop accu@ltgions to potential thermal issues.
We also develop and use proprietary heat spresalershance the thermal management characteritas enemory subsystems.

Customers

We primarily market and sell our products to legd®EMs in the server, high performance computindj@mmunications markets. Our
memory subsystems are incorporated into multipdéf@ims at IBM, Dell, Gateway, Lenovo, Hewlett-Pagkand other OEMs. Sales to IBM,
Dell and Lenovo generated approximately 33%, 38&h280, respectively, of our net sales in 2006 arfih,286% and 13%, respectively, of our
net sales in 2005.




The following chart summarizes some of our repregame customers in our principal end markets 20&@*

Servers Workstations Mobile Computing
Dell, Gateway, Google, IB} Dell, Hewlet-Packarc Hewlet-Packard, Lenov
High Performance Computing Networking/Telecom
PSSC Labs, Verari, Forcel0, Foundry Networks,
Western Scientifi Stoke, Tekele:

* Listing does not include all representative marketsustomers due to contractual confidentialityyisions.

Our sales are made primarily pursuant to standarchpse orders that may be rescheduled or caneelezglatively short notice. Thus, we
do not have a significant backlog.

Sales and Marketing

We market and sell our products through a dirdetss@rce and a network of independent sales reptatives. Our sales activities focus
primarily on developing strong relationships at thehnical, marketing and executive managementdevithin market-leading OEMs. These
OEMs design systems for a variety of applicatidra tequire a significant number of high performanmemory subsystems, representing
substantial opportunities for us. We have beenessfal in developing OEM relationships through abitity to provide high performance
memory subsystems. Our direct sales group anddigbdication engineers work closely with our OEMstmumers at an early stage of their
design cycles to solve their design challengestanigsign our products into their systems.

We believe in the timely communication and exchamigaformation with our customers. We utilize wathined, highly technical
program management teams to successfully drivepmeduct development and quickly respond to ourausts’ needs and expectations. Our
program management teams provide quick respongs timd act as a single point-of-contact for rousaes during the sales process.
Additionally, they address the long-term business technology goals of our customers. We empl@aatapproach to business development
whereby our sales team and independent represegadientify, qualify and prioritize customer prests through offices in a number of
locations worldwide.

Our marketing efforts are twofold: creating awarenef the benefits of our proprietary technologied design techniques in the
development of application-specific memory subsysteand building our brand awareness with our ctiimed potential customers.

Manufacturing

We currently manufacture all of our products at fawility in Irvine, California. Our advanced engiring and design capabilities,
combined with our in-house manufacturing processié®y us to assemble our memory subsystems rgleatd in high volume. Our advanced,
customized manufacturing facility is capable offace mount assembly, subsystem testing, systenhbewe-in testing, programming,
marking, labeling and packaging. At each stagé&efproduction cycle, including product prototypiagalification sample production and
high-volume manufacturing and delivery, we focuspooviding our customers with rapid response amdtghanufacturing turn-around times.
Manufacturing cycle times for our products are ¢gflly one week or less, and in some cases as féwoagays, from receipt of order.

We are expanding our manufacturing capabilitiesfgning a new facility near Shanghai in the PeggRepublic of China, or the PRC,
which we expect will begin production in the secdvadf of 2007. This facility will be configured e same manner as our Irvine facility and,
once operating, will




significantly increase our manufacturing capaditfe believe that this facility will enable us to @ke better operating leverage through lower
material and labor costs. This facility will alsatpur products in closer proximity to a numbeoaf end customers, allowing us to fulfill
customer orders more quickly. During February 2@0& entered into various agreements for this fgditicluding construction of leasehold
improvements and purchase of manufacturing equipmen

We acquire components and materials such as DRAgMVrign third party suppliers and assemble themfintshed subsystems. We
believe that one of our key strengths is the edfitprocurement and management of components fasulisystems, which benefits our
customers in the form of lower costs and incregseduct availability. We have developed strong $ieppelationships with key DRAM IC
manufacturers, which we believe gives us directraady access to the critical components that vee fer our production activities. We
typically qualify our products with our customersing multiple manufacturers of DRAM ICs. The fleikitly to choose from several DRAM IC
providers allows us to minimize product cost anciméze product availability.

We schedule production based on purchase order ¢omnts and anticipated orders. In addition, weatheanced inventory managem
and material resource planning techniques to maaagsupply chain. Using electronic data intercleawith our suppliers, we are able to react
quickly to changes in raw material availability. Wease raw materials to the manufacturing flgomeans of an on-line computerized
system, which allows for internal quality analysigect access to inventory information and progiurcfloor material tracking. We have a
flexible manufacturing system, and we have the l#ipato sell excess quantities of DRAM ICs to igdte inventory risks. Our sales of excess
inventory generated $11.4 million, or 8%, of out s&les for 2006 and $19.1 million, or 24%, of nat sales for 2005.

Our quality assurance engineers work with our appto ensure that the raw materials we receivetimgr high quality standards. These
engineers also perform onsite quality control auditd use our internal test and inspection systemerify that purchased components and
materials meet our specifications. Our suppliediguprogram and incoming material quality contpsbgram are important aspects of our
overall manufacturing process.

We strive to reduce product failures to the lowssssible rate. To achieve this goal, we performoamg reliability testing on our memory
subsystems and share the results of that testitigouir customers. We believe that this improvessifgtem design process and allows for the
elimination of potential problems at the earliessgible stage. In addition, we have implementedgatares which require that all of our
memory subsystems undergo functional and systemibuesting prior to delivery to the customer. @enplement our test capabilities with
advanced imaging technology to inspect the quafityur microBGA assemblies.

We are certified in ISO 9001:2000 Quality Managet&ystems, ISO 14001:1996 Environmental Managei@tntdards, and OSHAS
18001:1999 Occupational Health and Safety Manage®gstems.

Competition

Our products are primarily targeted for the sertaggh performance computing and communications etarklhese markets are intensely
competitive, as numerous companies vie for busioppsrtunities at a limited number of large OEMsir @rimary competitors are memory
module providers such as SimpleTech, Inc., SMARTdMar Technologies, Inc., and Viking Interworkgjigision of Sanmina-SCI
Corporation. We also face competition from DRAM mfatturers in a limited range of applications. As @nter new markets and pursue
additional applications for our products, we magefaompetition from a larger number of competitors.

Many of our competitors have substantially greéitemcial, technical, marketing, distribution arthér resources, broader product lines,
lower cost structures, greater brand recognitiahlanger




standing relationships with customers and suppl®&osne of our competitors may also have a greaibtyao influence industry standards tt
we do, as well as more extensive patent portfolios.

Some of our customers and suppliers may have mtapyi products or technologies which are competitith our products, or could
develop internal solutions or enter into strategiationships with, or acquire, existing high-dépshemory module providers. Any of these
actions could reduce our customers’ demand fopoaducts. Some of our significant suppliers of mgm&s may be able to manufacture
competitive products at lower costs by leveragirigmal efficiencies, or could choose to reducesupply of memory ICs, adversely affecting
our ability to manufacture our memory subsystema timely basis, if at all.

Our ability to compete in our current target maskand in future markets will depend in large paroar ability to successfully develop,
introduce and sell new and enhanced products onedytand cost-effective basis, and to responchinging market requirements. We believe
that the principal competitive factors in the sétatof high performance memory subsystems by gialecustomers are:

« understanding of OEM system and business requirtsmen

 timeliness of new product introductions;

» design characteristics and performance;

« quality and reliability;

« track record of volume delivery;

« credibility with the customer;

« fulfillment capability and flexibility; and

e price.

We believe that we compete favorably with respecthése factors. We expect, however, that our ntiered future competitors could
develop competing products that could cause armeaii sales or loss of market acceptance of owtymts.
Research and Development

The market for high performance memory subsystansharacterized by rapid and continuous technotteyglopment and product
innovation. We believe that the continued and tintEdvelopment of new products and the enhancenfentisting products are critical to
maintaining our competitive position. Our reseaaold development engineers focus on new produaguiesid development, the development
of thermal and electronic signal integrity soluspnew product testing techniques and methodol@gidsmprovements to our manufacturing
processes.

Our engineering staff continually explores pradtagplications of new technologies, works with QEM customers and provides supg
services throughout the product life cycle, inchglarchitecture definition, component selectioesaatic design, layout, manufacturing and
test engineering. An important aspect of our redeand development effort is to understand thelehgés presented by our OEM customers’
requirements and satisfy them by utilizing our isttiy knowledge, proprietary technologies and techiréxpertise.

We believe that to remain competitive we must cargito focus on developing advanced memory subsytehnologies to address our
customers’ increasingly complex memory subsystaqmirements. Our total expenditures for researchdavelopment were $3.3 million, $3.0
million and $3.8 million for 2006, 2005 and 200dspectively.




We use advanced design tools to develop produattierate at high frequencies. These design évalble real-time simulation and
behavioral modeling of our designs using the imuut buffer information specification of our slipps’ components. These simulation tools
help us reduce or eliminate electronic signal meftes, clock skews, signal jitter and noise, &lvbich can reduce system performance and
reliability.

Intellectual Property

Our high performance memory subsystems are dewliogeart using our proprietary intellectual prageand we believe that the stren
of our intellectual property rights will be impontato the success of our business. We utilize patet trade secret protection, confidentiality
agreements with customers and partners, discl@wénvention assignment agreements with emplogeé<onsultants and other contractual
provisions to protect our intellectual property ander proprietary information.

As of December 30, 2006, we had four patents isanélceleven patent applications pending. Assuntiagthey are properly maintained,
one of our issued patents will expire in 2022 dreldther three will expire in 2024. Our issued ptte@nd patent applications relate to PCB
design and layout techniques, packaging techniguesthe use of custom logic in high performancenory subsystems. We intend to activ
pursue the filing of additional patent applicatioai&ted to our technology advancements. While @liebe that our patent and other intellec
property rights are important to our success, ecintical expertise and ability to introduce newdpicis in a timely manner also will continue
to be important factors in maintaining our competitposition. Accordingly, we believe that our ness is not materially dependent upon any
one claim in any of our pending patent applications

Despite our precautions, a third party may reversgneer, copy or otherwise obtain and use ourymsdservices or technology without
authorization, develop similar technology indeperityeor design around any patents issued to ustelten be no assurance that our efforts
taken to prevent misappropriation or infringemeindur intellectual property by third parties haveeh or will be successful.

Employees

As of January 31, 2007, we had 146 full-time emepksy including 98 employees in operations, 15 eyegl® in research and
development, 21 employees in sales and marketimg1a employees engaged in other administrativetioms. Our operations department
performs manufacturing, procurement and planniniyities. We use contract employees in our operatidepartment from time to time to
effectively manage our manufacturing workflow. Aslanuary 31, 2007, our operations department BazbBtract employees engaged full-
time in manufacturing and our general and admiaiiste departments had 4 contract employees. Wadarpgarty to any collective bargaining
agreements with any of our employees. We have resygerienced a work stoppage, and we believe opiagme relations are good.

General Information

We maintain a website at www.netlist.com (this anif resource locator, or URL, is an inactive tektegerence only and is not intended
to incorporate our website into this Form 10-K). We reports with the Securities and Exchange Cassion and make available, free of
charge, on or through our website, our annual tspor Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Qrext reports on Form 8-K, proxy and
information statements and amendments to thosetsefiled or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a)l®fd) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practaftdrieve electronically file such material with,farnish it to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Our website also contains copies ofcogporate governance policy, code of businesswadrahd ethics, insider trading policy
and whistleblower policy, as well as copies of tharters for our audit committee, compensation cdtesand nominating and corporate
governance committee.




ltem1A. Risk Factors

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forwardiimg statements. These forward-looking statenmgamngrally are identified by

words such as “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “stimate”, “intend”, “strategy”, “may”, “will likely ” and similar words or phrases. A

forward-looking statement is neither a prediction nor aantee of future events or circumstances, andefiglsire events or circumstances
may not occur. Investors should not place unduamek on the forward-looking statements, which kpady as of the date of this Report. We
are under no obligation to update or alter any fard-looking statements, whether as a result of id@rmation, future events or otherwise.
These forward-looking statements are all basedwreatly available operating, financial and compi information and are subject to
various risks and uncertainties, including but hotited to the rapidly-changing nature of technatpgvolving industry standards;
introductions of new products by competitors; ctesin end-user demand for technology solutions;aduility to attract and retain skilled
personnel; our reliance on suppliers of criticalnaponents; and the political and regulatory envir@mnin the PRC. Our actual future rest
and trends may differ materially depending on aetgrof factors including, but not limited to, thieks and uncertainties discussed below. The
risks below are not the only ones we face. Addifioisks and risks that management currently comsidmmaterial may also have an adverse
effect on us.

We have a limited operating history, and we expe@ number of factors to cause our operating result®o fluctuate on a quarterly and
annual basis, which may make it difficult to predi¢ our future performance.

Our limited operating history makes it difficult ppedict our future performance. Our operating ltssuave varied significantly in the past
and will continue to fluctuate from quarter-to-qgiearor year-to-year in the future due to a varadtjactors, many of which are beyond our
control. Factors relating to our business that m@ytribute to these quarterly and annual fluctuetimclude the following factors, as well as
other factors described elsewhere in this report:

 the loss of, or a significant reduction in salesatéiey customer;

« the cyclical nature of the industry in which we oae;

¢ areduction in the demand for our high performameenory subsystems or the systems into which theynaorporated;
 our inability to develop new or enhanced produlség tichieve market acceptance in a timely manner;

« the timing of introductions of competing productdechnologies;

« our ability to adequately support future growth;

» our ability to procure an adequate supply of keyponents;

» changes in the prices of our products or in theé cbthe materials that we use to build our product

< our failure to maintain the qualification of ourogliucts with our current customers or to qualifyufetproducts with our current or
prospective customers;

« our establishment and ongoing operation of a newufeaturing facility in the PRC,;
« the loss of any of our key personnel;

« delays in fulfilling orders for our products orailtire to fulfill orders;

« disputes regarding intellectual property rights;

« litigation involving our products;




e our customers’ failure to pay us on a timely basig]
« changes in accounting principles or policies.

Due to the various factors mentioned above, anersttthe results of any prior quarterly or annwalqus should not be relied upon as an
indication of our future operating performance.

Our two largest customers comprised approximately % of our net sales for 2006 and our three largestustomers comprised
approximately 68% of our net sales for 2005 and thioss of, or a significant reduction in sales to,ryy one of these customers could
materially harm our business.

Sales to Dell and IBM represented 38% and 33% easfely, of our net sales in 2006. Sales to DBIM and Lenovo represented 35%,
20% and 13%, respectively, of our net sales in 200& expect that sales to Dell and IBM will contnto represent a significant percentage of
our net sales for at least the next 12 months. @ead have londerm agreements with these customers, or with #mgra@ustomer. Any one
these two customers could decide at any time twodisnue, decrease or delay their purchase of mduygts. In addition, the prices that these
two customers pay for our products could changmgttime. The loss of either of Dell or IBM as atmmer, or a significant reduction in sales
to either of them, would significantly reduce ot sales and adversely affect our operating results

Our ability to maintain or increase our net satesur key customers depends on a variety of factoasy of which are beyond our
control. These factors include our customers’ cargd sales of servers and other computing systesthéncorporate our memory subsystems
and our customers’ continued incorporation of aadpcts into their systems.

Because of these and other factors, we cannoteageurthat net sales to these customers will coator that the amount of such net sales
will reach or exceed historical levels in any fetgeriod. Because these customers account forstasitial portion of our net sales, the failure
of any one of these customers to pay on a timedjshaould negatively impact our cash flow.

A limited number of relatively large potential customers dominate the markets for our products.

Our target markets are characterized by a limitedber of large companies. Consolidation in one orenof our target markets may
further increase this industry concentration. Assult, we anticipate that sales of our productsomntinue to be concentrated among a limited
number of large customers in the foreseeable fuWeebelieve that our financial results will dependignificant part on our success in
establishing and maintaining relationships withg affecting substantial sales to, these potentisianers. Even if we establish these
relationships, our financial results will be largelependent on these customers’ sales and busemgts.

The markets in which we compete are cyclical in nate, and any future downturn could adversely affecbur business.

The markets in which we compete and in which ostamers operate have been cyclical and are chaemsttdy wide fluctuations in
product supply and demand. These markets haveierped significant downturns, often connected wothin anticipation of, maturing
product cycles, reductions in technology spendmgj@eclines in general economic conditions. Thesenturns have been characterized by
diminished product demand, production overcapadiigh inventory levels and the erosion of aversgéng prices. As a result, our sales will
likely decline during these periods. In additidnyé are unable to control our expenses adequitefsponse to reduced net sales, our results
of operations would be negatively impacted.
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We are subject to risks relating to product concerraition and lack of market diversification.

In 2006 and 2005, we derived 79% and 51%, respagtiof our net sales from sales of our high peri@nce memory subsystems for use
in the server market. We expect these memory stdrsgsto continue to account for most of our netsal the near term. Continued market
acceptance of these products for use in serverstical to our success. If the demand for serdeteriorates or if the demand for our products
to be incorporated in servers declines, our opagagsults would be adversely affected, and we @vbelforced to diversify our product
portfolio and our target markets. We may not be ablachieve this diversification, and our inaitih do so may adversely affect our business.

We have historically incurred losses and may contire to incur losses.

We incurred net losses each year from the incemti@ur business through fiscal 2005. Our cumuéatiet losses were $16.3 million and
$21.4 million as of December 30, 2006 and Decer8lieP005, respectively. We may not be able to raairprofitability on a quarterly or
annual basis in the future.

We use a small number of DRAM IC suppliers and areubject to risks of disruption in the supply of DRAM ICs.

Our ability to fulfill customer orders is dependemnt a sufficient supply of DRAM ICs, which are asential component of our memory
subsystems. There is a relatively small numbeuppbers of DRAM ICs, and we purchase from onlybset of these suppliers. We have no
long-term DRAM supply contracts. Our dependence small number of suppliers and the lack of any@nutaed sources of DRAM supply
expose us to several risks, including the inabttitpbtain an adequate supply of DRAM ICs, prica@ases, delivery delays and poor quality.

From time to time, shortages in DRAM ICs have reeglisome suppliers to limit the supply of their DRACs. As a result, we may be
unable to obtain the DRAM ICs necessary to filltousers’ orders for our products in a timely mantiewe are unable to obtain a sufficient
supply of DRAM ICs to meet our customers’ requiratsethese customers may reduce future ordersufopr@ducts or not purchase our
products at all, which would cause our net saletetdine and harm our operating results. In addijtour reputation could be harmed, we may
not be able to replace any lost business with nestoeers, and we may lose market share to our ditonge

Our customers qualify the DRAM ICs of our suppligasuse in their systems. If one of our suppl&reuld experience quality control
problems, it may be disqualified by one or mor@wf customers. This would disrupt our supplies BfAM ICs and reduce the number of
suppliers available to us, and may require thaguadify a new supplier.

The price of DRAM ICs is volatile, and excess invaary of DRAM ICs, other components, and finished poducts could adversely affect
our gross margin.

The prices of our products are adjusted periodidzdised largely on the market price of DRAM ICsjchiconstituted more than 77% and
82% of the total cost of our memory subsystems datihg 2006 and 2005, respectively. Once our prigigh a customer are negotiated, we
generally unable to revise pricing with that customntil our next regularly scheduled price adjustin Consequently, we are exposed to the
risks associated with the volatility of the prideDRAM ICs during that period. If the market priftr DRAM ICs increases, we generally
cannot pass this price increase on to our custofoemoducts purchased under an existing purcheder. As a result, our cost of sales could
increase and our gross margins could decreasenatteely, if there is a decline in the price of BR ICs, we will need to reduce our selling
prices for subsequent purchase orders, which maytri@ a decline in our expected net sales.

11




Customer demand for our products, and thus DRAM ¢@s be difficult to estimate because we do neehang-term commitments from
our customers, and our customers may cancel or gefehase orders for any reason. If we overestiroastomer demand, we will have excess
inventory of DRAM ICs. If there is a subsequentlaecin the price of DRAM ICs, the value of our avory will fall. As a result, we may
need to writedown the value of our DRAM IC inventory, which magsult in a significant decrease in our gross nmaagid financial conditior
If we underestimate customer demand, we will neelgufficient inventory of DRAM ICs to manufactusar products. This will lead to delays
in the delivery of our products, which could caosger cancellations, the loss of customers andteedse in our net sales.

If the supply of other component materials used tonanufacture our products is interrupted, or if our inventory becomes obsolete, our
results of operations and financial condition couldbe adversely affected.

We use consumables and other components, incliRIgg, to manufacture our memory subsystems. Wetsosseprocure PCBs and
other components from single or limited sourceske advantage of volume pricing discounts. Makshartages or transportation problems
could interrupt the manufacture of our productsifrime to time in the future. These delays in mantifring could adversely affect our results
of operations.

Frequent technology changes and the introductiorerf-generation products also may result in theotascence of other items of
inventory, such as our custom-built PCBs, whichldeaduce our gross margin and adversely affecbperating performance and financial
condition. We may not be able to sell some proddeteloped for one customer to another customexusecour products are often designed to
address specific customer requirements, and ifre@ble to sell these products our margin on suctyzts may be reduced.

We may lose our competitive position if we are undb to timely and cost-effectively develop new or éranced products that meet our
customers’ requirements and achieve market acceptae.

Our industry is characterized by intense competjtiapid technological change, evolving industanstards and rapid product
obsolescence. Evolving industry standards and tdogital change or new, competitive technologiaddoender our existing products
obsolete. Accordingly, our ability to compete i tiuture will depend in a large part on our abitiyidentify and develop new or enhanced
products on a timely and cost-effective basis, tangspond to changing customer requirements.dardo develop and introduce new or
enhanced products, we need to:

« identify and adjust to the changing requirementswfcurrent and potential customers;
« identify and adapt to emerging technological treand evolving industry standards in our markets;

« design and introduce cost-effective, innovative padormance-enhancing features that differentiateproducts from those of our
competitors;

« develop relationships with potential suppliers efnponents required for these new or enhanced prsduc
+ qualify these products for use in our customerstpcts; and
» develop and maintain effective marketing strategies

Our product development efforts are costly andriehty risky. It is difficult to foresee changesdevelopments in technology or
anticipate the adoption of new standards. Moreaweee these things are identified, if at all, wé méed to hire the appropriate technical
personnel, develop the product and identify andliatite design flaws. As a result, we may not be &bkuccessfully develop new or enhar
products, or we may experience delays in the dpwedémt and introduction of new or enhanced
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products. Delays in product development and intetida could result in the loss of, or delays in @&ting, net sales and the loss of market
share, as well as damage to our reputation. Ewer dlevelop new or enhanced products, they mayneet our customers’ requirements or
gain market acceptance. Accordingly, we cannotrasgou that our future product development effarilsresult in the development of new or
enhanced products or that such products will aghiearket acceptance.

Our customers require that our products undergo aéngthy and expensive qualification process withowtny assurance of net sales.

Our prospective customers generally make a sigmificommitment of resources to test and evaluatenemory subsystems prior to
purchasing our products and integrating them ingirtsystems. This extensive qualification prodgasgelves rigorous reliability testing and
evaluation of our products, which may continuedisrmonths or longer and is often subject to del&ysddition to qualification of specific
products, some of our customers may also requite usdergo a technology qualification if our protldesigns incorporate innovative
technologies that the customer has not previoustpentered. Such technology qualifications oftde tsubstantially longer than product
qualifications and can take over a year to compl@telification by a prospective customer doesamsure any sales to that prospective
customer. Even after successful qualification aaldssof our products to a customer, changes ipmducts, our manufacturing facilities, our
production processes or our component suppliersrewyire a new qualification process, which mayltds additional delays. In addition,
because the qualification process is both prodpetific and platform-specific, our existing custasisometimes require us to requalify our
products, or to qualify our new products, for us@éw platforms or applications. For example, as@BM customers transition from prior
generation DDR DRAM architectures to current getienaDDR2 DRAM architectures, we must design andlify new products for use by
those customers. In the past, this process of desid qualification has taken up to six monthsamglete, during which time our net sales to
those customers declined significantfter our products are qualified, it can take savemonths before the customer begins productiorvas
begin to generate net sales. We must devote suiasta@asources, including design, engineering,ssaterketing and management efforts, to
qualify our products with prospective customerarticipation of sales. If we delay or do not suctiequalifying a product with a prospective
customer, we will not be able to sell that prodadthat prospect, which would harm our operatirsplts and business.

We may not be able to maintain our competitive potibn because of the intense competition in our tasged markets.

We participate in a highly competitive market, anel expect competition to intensify. Many of thesenpetitors have longer operating
histories, significantly greater resources and nesaegnition, a larger base of customers and leegerding relationships with customers and
suppliers than we have. As a result, some of thes®etitors are able to devote greater resourcégetdevelopment, promotion and sale of
products and are better positioned than we aneflicence customer acceptance of their products eveproducts. These competitors also may
be able to respond better to new or emerging tdofies or standards and may be able to deliverymsdvith comparable or superior
performance at a lower price. For these reasonsnayenot be able to compete successfully agaiesetibompetitors.

In addition to the competitors described above,esofrour OEM customers have their own internal glegiroups that may develop
solutions that compete with ours. These designpggdiave some advantages over us, including dioeetsa to their respective companies’
technical information and technology roadmaps. OEM customers also have substantially greater ressufinancial or otherwise, than we
do, and may have lower cost structures than owss Fesult, they may be able to design and manuacompetitive products more efficiently
or inexpensively. If any of these OEM customerssarecessful in competing against us, our salesdatetline, our margins could be
negatively
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impacted and we could lose market share, any af ahich could harm our business and results efatons.

We expect our competitors to continue to improwveghrformance of their current products, reduce tireces and introduce new or
enhanced technologies that may offer greater padoce and improved pricing. If we are unable tocmat exceed the improvements mad
our competitors, our market position would detexierand our net sales would decline. In additiom,competitors may develop future
generations and enhancements of competitive predioat may render our technologies obsolete ormpetitive.

We also expect to face competition from new andrging companies that may enter our existing orritnarkets. These potential
competitors may have similar or alternative prodwehich may be less costly or provide additionatdees.

The establishment and ongoing operation of our plamed manufacturing facility in the People’s Republicof China, or the PRC, could
expose us to new and significant risks.

We are in the process of establishing a new matwiag facility in the PRC. To prepare this fagilfor operation, we will need to
purchase new equipment, replicate our current naautwrfing processes and hire additional technicalgmeel. The difficulties normally
associated with this complicated process will bepounded by language and cultural differences,edkas the geographic distance from our
current facility. Our management has limited exg@ece in creating or overseeing foreign operatiand,this new facility may divert substan
amounts of their time. Further, this new facilitile subject to factory audits by our custom&¥®& may not be able to begin operations at
new facility on a timely basis, or at all. Evertifs facility becomes operational and is qualifigdour customers, we cannot assure you that we
will be able to maintain control over product gtiglidelivery schedules, manufacturing yields ansteas we increase our output. We will also
have to manage a local workforce that may subjetbwncertainties or regulatory policies. Any idifities in operating this new facility could
cause product delivery delays and reduce our dpgregsults.

We currently anticipate that our new manufactufaglity in the PRC will become operational in thecond half of 2007. Once this
facility is established and becomes operationahesof our net sales will be denominated in Chirieseminbi, or Yuan. The Chinese
government controls the procedures by which Yuamwis/erted into other currencies, and conversioviusth generally requires government
consent. As a result, Yuan may not be freely cdiblerinto other currencies at all times. If thei@se government institutes changes in
currency conversion procedures, or imposes rasimgbn currency conversion, those actions maythagaimpact our operations and could
reduce our operating results. In addition, fludtua in the exchange rate between Yuan and U.&rdohay adversely affect our expenses and
results of operations as well as the value of ggets and liabilities. These fluctuations may aldeersely affect the comparability of our
period-to-period results. If we decide to declaredgnds and repatriate funds from our Chinese atpmrs, we will be required to comply with
the procedures and regulations of applicable Chkitees. Any changes to these procedures and regogator our failure to comply with those
procedures and regulations, could prevent us frakimg dividends and repatriating funds from ourr@sie operations, which could adversely
affect our financial condition. If we are able makeidends and repatriate funds from our Chinesrations, these dividends would be subject
to U.S. corporate income tax.

The PRC currently provides for favorable tax rdtescertain foreign-owned enterprises operatinggacified locations in the PRC. We
are establishing our China facility in such a taxered location. Should the PRC government eaaetised income tax structure, it is poss
that we would not realize the tax benefits thatoweently anticipate and this could adversely inigag operating results.
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We depend on a few key employees, and if we lose thervices of any of those employees or are unahiehire additional personnel, our
business could be harmed.

Our success to date has been highly dependenea@xflerience, relationships and technical knowleddehun K. Hong, our President,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Boalayesh Bhakta, our Chief Technology Officer, and<Ettpher Lopes, our Vice Presiden
Sales. We believe that our future success willdgeddent on our ability to retain the serviceshese key employees, develop their successors
reduce our reliance on them, and properly managérdimsition of their roles should departures occur

The loss of these key employees could delay theldpment and introduction of, and negatively impaat ability to sell our products a
otherwise harm our business. We do not have emmayagreements with any of these key employees tithe Mr. Hong. We do not carry
“Key Man” life insurance on any of our key emplogee

Our future success also depends on our abilityttac, retain and motivate highly skilled engiriegr manufacturing, other technical and
sales personnel. Competition for experienced peedda intense. We may not be successful in attrgetew engineers or other technical
personnel, or in retaining or motivating our exigtpersonnel. If we are unable to hire and retagireeers with the skills necessary to keep
pace with the evolving technologies in our markets,ability to continue to provide our current gucts and to develop new or enhanced
products will be negatively impacted, which woulttin our business. In addition, the shortage of egpeed engineers, and other factors, may
lead to increased recruiting, relocation and corspton costs for such engineers, which may exceeéxpectations and resources. These
increased costs may make hiring new engineergdiffior may reduce our margins.

As of January 31, 2007, 20% of our workforce caesi®f contract personnel. We invest considerabie and expense in training these
contract employees. We may experience high turn@tes in our contract employee workforce, whicly meguire us to expend additional
resources in the future. If we convert any of them@ract employees into permanent employees, wehae to pay finder's fees to the
contract agency.

Our lack of a significant backlog of unfilled orders, and the difficulty inherent in forecasting custoner demand, makes it difficult to
forecast our short-term production requirements tomeet that demand.

We do not have long-term purchase agreements witlewstomers. Instead, our customers generallyeacchase orders no more than
two weeks in advance of their desired delivery dabel these purchase orders generally have nolttiwreor rescheduling penalty provisio
This fact, combined with the quick turn-around tgkat apply to each order, makes it difficultdoefcast our production needs and allocate
production capacity efficiently. Our production exige levels are based in part on our forecastarafustomers’ future product requirements
and to a large extent are fixed in the short teékma result, we likely will be unable to adjust sgmg on a timely basis to compensate for any
unexpected shortfall in those orders. Any significshortfall of customer orders in relation to expectations could hurt our operating results,
cash flows and financial condition. Also, any rapidreases in production required by our custoroewd strain our resources and reduce our
margins. If such a rapid increase were to occangtgiven time, we may not have sufficient shortrtenanufacturing capacity to meet our
customers’ immediate demands.

We attempt to forecast the demand for the DRAMA@4d other components needed to manufacture oungiad_ead times for
components vary significantly and depend on varfaators, such as the specific supplier and theagehand supply for a component at a
given time. If we underestimate customer demarifilwe have not provided for sufficient manufactgricapacity, we would not be able to
manufacture a sufficient quantity of our produatd aould forego sales opportunities, lose markatesand damage our customer relations!
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If we are unable to manufacture our products efficéntly, our operating results could suffer.

We must continuously review and improve our mantufidicg processes in an effort to maintain satigfgctanufacturing yields and
product performance, lower our costs and othervésgin competitive. For example, we began impleingréead-free soldering technologies
in our manufacturing processes in the second quafr@005, and “Reduction of Hazardous Substanoesiufacturing processes in the fourth
quarter of 2005, both of which have been fully iempknted. Implementing process improvements inthed could negatively impact our
manufacturing yields, which would in turn adversaffect our results of operations.

As we manufacture more complex products, the risdnhaountering delays or difficulties increasese Btart-up costs associated with
implementing new manufacturing technologies, meshertl processes, including the purchase of nevpeguit, and any resulting
manufacturing delays and inefficiencies, could iegly impact our results of operations.

If we need to add manufacturing capacity, an expangf our existing manufacturing facility or esiahment of a new facility could be
subject to factory audits by our customers. Fomgda, our new manufacturing facility in the PRClwiéed to be audited and approved by our
key customers. Any delays or unexpected coststiegudtom this audit process could adversely affaat net sales and results of operations. In
addition, we cannot be certain that we will be @blencrease our manufacturing capacity on a tinbelsis or meet the standards of any
applicable factory audits.

If we fail to protect our proprietary rights, our ¢ ustomers or our competitors might gain access to oproprietary designs, processes
and technologies, which could adversely affect owperating results.

We rely on a combination of patent protection, éradcret laws and restrictions on disclosure ttept@ur intellectual property rights. V
have submitted a number of patent applicationsrdigg our proprietary processes and technologg.nbt certain when or if any of the claims
in the remaining applications will be allowed. Tatel we have had only four patents issued. We int@dntinue filing patent applications w
respect to most of the new processes and techegltigat we develop. However, patent protection nmybe available for some of these
processes or technologies.

It is possible that our efforts to protect our llgetual property rights may not:
« prevent challenges to, or the invalidation or ameention of, our existing intellectual propertyhtg;

« prevent our competitors from independently develggimilar products, duplicating our products osigaing around any patents that
may be issued to us;

« prevent disputes with third parties regarding owhir of our intellectual property rights;

» prevent disclosure of our trade secrets and know-tchird parties or into the public domain;
 resultin valid patents, including internationatqras, from any of our pending or future applicasipor
« otherwise adequately protect our intellectual prypeghts.

Others may attempt to reverse engineer, copy @raike obtain and use our proprietary technologiéisout our consent. Monitoring the
unauthorized use of our technologies is difficie cannot be certain that the steps we have takeprevent the unauthorized use of our
technologies. This is particularly true in foreigpuntries, such as the PRC, where we are in theepsoof establishing a new manufacturing
facility and where the laws may not protect ourgpietary rights to the same extent as applicabi& &ws.
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If some or all of the claims in our patent applicas are not allowed, or if any of our intellectpabperty protections are limited in scope
by a court or circumvented by others, we could faceecased competition with regard to our productsreased competition could significar
harm our business and our operating results.

We may be involved in costly legal proceedings toefend against claims that we infringe the intellectal property rights of others or to
enforce or protect our intellectual property rights.

Lawsuits claiming that we are infringing otherdalhectual property rights may be brought agaisstaind we may have to defend against
claims of infringement or invalidity. We currentyan to explore new technologies such as flash mgiarad to develop new products for our
existing markets, such as communications, anddar markets, such as networking. By making use ege¢mew technologies and entering
these new markets there is an increased likelitloaidothers might allege that our products infringetheir intellectual property rights.
Litigation is inherently uncertain, and an advevaécome could subject us to significant liabilior lamages or invalidate our proprietary
rights. An adverse outcome also could force uske specific actions, including causing us to:

» cease selling products that are claimed to benigifig a third party’s intellectual property;
* pay royalties on past or future sales;

« seek a license from the third party intellectuagarty owner to use their technology in our produathich license may not be availe
on reasonable terms, or at all; or

« redesign those products that are claimed to bagifirg a third party’s intellectual property.

There is a limited pool of experienced technicakpanel that we can draw upon to meet our hirirggseAs a result, a number of our
existing employees have worked for our existingatential competitors at some point during theneeas, and we anticipate that a number of
our future employees will have similar work hisesi In the past, some of these competitors hawaeththat our employees misappropriated
their trade secrets or violated non-competitionam-solicitation agreements. Some of our competitoay threaten or bring legal action
involving similar claims against us or our existiegployees or make such claims in the future tegreus from hiring qualified candidates.
Lawsuits of this type may be brought, even if thisreo merit to the claim, simply as a strateggrain our financial resources and divert
management’s attention away from our business.

We also may find it necessary to litigate agaitisers, including our competitors, customers anché&remployees, to enforce our
intellectual property and contractual and commérgjhats including, in particular, our trade seereds well as to challenge the validity and
scope of the proprietary rights of others. We cdiddome subject to counterclaims or countersuanagus as a result of this litigation.
Moreover, any legal disputes with customers coalase them to cease buying or using our produdglay their purchase of our products and
could substantially damage our relationship witmnth

Any litigation, regardless of its outcome, wouldtlree consuming and costly to resolve, divert oanagement’s time and attention and
negatively impact our results of operations.
If we are required to obtain licenses to use thirgbarty intellectual property and we fail to do so, air business could be harmed.

Although some of the components used in our finatlpcts contain the intellectual property of thiatties, we believe that our suppliers
bear the sole responsibility to obtain any rightd Bcenses to such third party intellectual proypeWhile we have no knowledge that any third
party licensor disputes our belief, we cannot asgou that disputes will not arise in the futurbeToperation of our business and our ability to
compete successfully depends significantly on ontinued operation without claims of
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infringement or demands resulting from such claimsluding demands for payments of money in thenfof, for example, ongoing licensing
fees.

If it is determined that we are required to obtiaimound licenses and we fail to obtain licensesf such licenses are not available on
economically feasible terms, our business, opagatsults and financial condition could be sigrifidy harmed.
If our products are defective or are used in defedte systems, we may be subject to product recalls product liability claims.

If our products are defectively manufactured, ciontkefective components or are used in defectivaalfunctioning systems, we could
subject to product liability claims and productaks, safety alerts or advisory notices. While vaedproduct liability insurance coverage, it
may not be adequate to satisfy claims made agasndt/e also may be unable to obtain insurancedriuture at satisfactory rates or in
adequate amounts. Product liability claims or pobddacalls, regardless of their ultimate outconmeild have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and reputation, and on ourigbtb attract and retain customers. In additioe, way determine that it is in our best interest
to accept product returns in circumstances wherare@eot contractually obligated to do so in otdemaintain good relations with our
customers. Accepting product returns may negativepact our operating results.

If we acquire other businesses or technologies ihe future, these acquisitions could disrupt our bugsess and harm our operating result
and financial condition.

We will evaluate opportunities to acquire businessetechnologies that might complement our curpeatiuct offerings or enhance our
technical capabilities. We have no experience quamg other businesses or technologies. Acquoisitientail a number of risks that could
adversely affect our business and operating resnttkiding:

« difficulties in integrating the operations, techogies or products of the acquired companies;

« the diversion of management’s time and attentiomfthe normal daily operations of the business;

« insufficient increases in net sales to offset insez expenses associated with acquisitions orrachcbmpanies;

« difficulties in retaining business relationshipgwsuppliers and customers of the acquired companie

» the overestimation of potential synergies or aylalaealizing those synergies;

« entering markets in which we have no or limitedexignce and in which competitors have stronger ptgrksitions; and
« the potential loss of key employees of the acqui@dpanies.

Future acquisitions also could cause us to incbt debe subject to contingent liabilities. In agtwh, acquisitions could cause us to issue
equity securities that could dilute the ownershepcgntages of our existing stockholders. Furtheemaequisitions may result in material
charges or adverse tax consequences, substargiaciion, deferred compensation charges, in-gooesearch and development charges, the
amortization of amounts related to deferred stoggeld compensation expense and identifiable purdhasmgible assets or impairment of
goodwill, any or all of which could negatively afteour results of operations.
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If we do not effectively manage our growth, our resurces, systems and controls may be strained androesults of operations may
suffer.

We have expanded, and plan to continue to expamdyperations, both domestically and internatignaiiny future growth may strain o
resources, management information and telecommtionicsystems, and operational and financial costfbb manage our growth effectively,
including the development of our new manufactufaugility in the PRC, we must continue to improvelaxpand our systems and controls.
may not be able to do this in a timely or cost-@ffee manner, and our current systems and contmalg not be adequate to support our future
operations. In addition, our officers have reldijMemited experience in managing a rapidly growlmgsiness or a public company. As a result,
they may not be able to provide the guidance nacg$s continue our growth or maintain our markaesipon. Any failure to manage our
growth or improve or expand our existing systents @ntrols, or unexpected difficulties in doing sould harm our business.

Our internal controls over financial reporting may not be effective, and our independent auditors maygot be able to certify as to their
effectiveness, which could have a significant andlaerse effect on our business.

We plan to evaluate our internal controls overtiitial reporting to allow management to report ord aur registered public accounting
firm to attest to, those internal controls as Wwélrequired by Section 404 of the Sarba@&key Act of 2002 and the rules and regulationthe!
Securities and Exchange Commission, which we diliely refer to as Section 404. This will involvestem and process evaluations and
testing to comply with the management assessmehtegyistered public accounting firm attestatioruiegments of Section 404, which will
initially have to be made in our annual report @mrfr 10-K for our 2007 fiscal year. Effective intafrtontrols are necessary for us to produce
reliable financial reports and are important in effort to prevent financial fraud. In the courdeoar Section 404 evaluations, we may identify
conditions that may result in significant deficieascor material weaknesses and we may concludetir@ncements, modifications or changes
to our internal controls are necessary or desirafiiplementing any such matters would divert thierdion of our management, could involve
significant costs, and may negatively impact osules of operations.

We note that there are inherent limitations ondffectiveness of internal controls, as they cammevent collusion, management override
or failure of human judgment. If we fail to maintain effective system of internal controls or ifragement or our independent registered
public accounting firm were to discover materialakieesses in our internal controls, we may be unalpeoduce reliable financial reports or
prevent fraud, and it could harm our financial dtind and results of operations, result in a losmweestor confidence and negatively impact
our share price.

If a standardized memory solution which addressesie demands of our customers is developed, our netlss and market share may
decline.

Many of our memory subsystems are specificallyglesil for our OEM customers’ high performance systedur business would be
harmed if these high performance systems weredorbe standardized so that DRAM IC manufactureistioer companies could develop and
manufacture a commodity memory module addressiagi#mands of some or all of these high performappéications. If DRAM IC
manufacturers or other companies are able to dpsekiandardized solution, our future business Inedymited to identifying the next
generation of high performance memory demands dfl@&stomers and developing a solution that addsesgeh demands. Until fully
implemented, this next generation of products mastitute a much smaller market, which may redugenet sales and market share.
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Our failure to comply with environmental laws and regulations could subject us to significant fines ahliabilities or cause us to incur
significant costs.

We are subject to various and frequently changirf federal, state and local and foreign governaiéavs and regulations relating to
the protection of the environment, including thgseerning the discharge of pollutants into theasid water, the management and disposal of
hazardous substances and wastes, the cleanuptafrdnated sites and the maintenance of a safe \lamdpln particular, some of our
manufacturing processes may require us to handlelapose of hazardous materials from time to tioe.example, in the past our
manufacturing operations have used lead-basedrdaltiee assembly of our products. Today, we uad-feee soldering technologies in our
manufacturing processes, as this is required fadysts entering the European Union. We could isalnstantial costs, including clean-up
costs, civil or criminal fines or sanctions anddhparty claims for property damage or personairinjas a result of violations of, or
noncompliance with, environmental laws and regateti These laws and regulations also could reguite incur significant costs to remain in
compliance.

Economic, political and other risks associated witlinternational sales and operations could adverselgffect our net sales.

Part of our growth strategy involves making satefoteign corporations and delivering our produot&acilities located in foreign
countries. To facilitate this process and to meetdng-term projected demand for our productsameplanning to set up a new manufacturing
facility in the PRC. Selling and manufacturing ardign countries subjects us to additional riskisgmesent with our domestic operations. We
will begin operating in business and regulatoryiemments in which we have little or no previoupesience. We will need to overcome
language and cultural barriers to effectively cartchur operations in these new environments. Intiacd the economies of the PRC and other
countries have been highly volatile in the pastulting in significant fluctuations in local cur@as and other instabilities. These instabilities
affect a number of our customers and supplierslditian to our foreign operations and continuexisior may occur again in the future.
International turmoil and the threat of future teist attacks, both domestically and internatigndibve contributed to an uncertain political
economic climate, both in the U.S. and globallyd &ave negatively impacted the worldwide econonie @ccurrence of one or more of these
instabilities could adversely affect our foreigreagtions and some of our customers or suppliect) ebwhich could adversely affect our net
sales. In addition, our failure to meet applicaleigulatory requirements or overcome cultural besre®uld result in production delays and
increased turn-around times, which would adveraélct our business.

Our operations could be disrupted by power outages)atural disasters or other factors.

Our current manufacturing facility is located imifre, California. Due to this geographic concembrgta disruption of our manufacturing
operations, resulting from equipment failure, poVediures, quality control issues, human error, ggovnent intervention or natural disasters,
including earthquakes, fires or floods, could inigt or interfere with our manufacturing operati@ms consequently harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Sdignuptions would cause significant delays in stepts of our products and adversely affect
our operating results.

Our principal stockholders have significant votingpower and may take actions that may not be in thedst interest of our other
stockholders.

Our executive officers, directors and 5% stockhddeeneficially own, in total, approximately 50%afr outstanding common stock. A
result, these stockholders, acting together, hia@ebility to exert substantial influence overraditters requiring approval by our stockholders,
including the election and removal of directors ang proposed merger, consolidation or sale afradlubstantially all of our assets
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and other corporate transactions. This concentraticontrol could be disadvantageous to otherk$toiclers with interests different from thc
of our executive officers, directors and principtdckholders. For example, our executive officdigctors and principal stockholders could
delay or prevent an acquisition or merger evehdfttansaction would benefit other stockholdersaddition, this significant concentration of
share ownership may adversely affect the tradifgegor our common stock because investors mayeperalisadvantages in owning stock in
companies with stockholders that have the abilitgxercise significant control.

Anti- takeover provisions under our charter documents andelaware law could delay or prevent a change of otrol and could also limit
the market price of our stock.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contpimvisions that could delay or prevent a changeoatrol of our company or changes
our board of directors that our stockholders migttsider favorable. In addition, these provisioogld limit the price that investors would be
willing to pay in the future for shares of our commnstock. The following are examples of provisiarsch are included in our certificate of
incorporation and bylaws, each as amended:

» our board of directors is authorized, without pstwckholder approval, to designate and issue pesfestock, commonly referred to as
“blank check” preferred stock, with rights seniorthhose of our common stock;

» stockholder action by written consent is prohibjted

* nominations for election to our board of directansl the submission of matters to be acted upotdokisolders at a meeting are
subject to advance notice requirements; and

» our board of directors is expressly authorized &ken alter or repeal our bylaws.

In addition, we are governed by the provisions eft®n 203 of the Delaware General Corporate Lakickvmay prohibit certain busine
combinations with stockholders owning 15% or mdrewr outstanding voting stock. These and othevigions in our certificate of
incorporation and bylaws, and of Delaware law caoulke it more difficult for stockholders or potetacquirors to obtain control of our boi
of directors or initiate actions that are opposgdhe then-current board of directors, includindpglng or impeding a merger, tender offer, or
proxy contest or other change of control transadtiwolving our company. Any delay or preventionaothange of control transaction or
changes in our board of directors could preventtmsummation of a transaction in which our stoddérs could receive a substantial
premium over the then-current market price forrtkbares.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable.

ltem 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located in appra&lyn@, 000 square feet of space in Irvine, Califarnnder a lease that expires in
June 2007. We also lease approximately 8,500 sdear®f space for our manufacturing facility lagéin Irvine, California. This lease expit
in November 2010. We are presently negotiatinddayer space, in Irvine, to consolidate our headgusand manufacturing buildings. In
addition, we lease offices on a monthly basis irpomate office centers located in Austin, TexadeRa, North Carolina and Dublin, Ireland.
We are in the process of establishing a manufagscility in the PRC. To date we have entered antetter of intent to lease a facility and
have commenced recruiting local personnel. We expexfacility to be operational in the secondflwdl2007. We believe that our current and
planned facilities are adequate for our currentexpbcted operations for the next twelve monthsthadadditional space can be obtained if
needed.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding

From time to time, we may be involved in litigaticglating to claims arising out of our operationghie normal course of business. To
date, no legal proceeding has had a material effects and we are not party to any material legadgeding.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Our annual meeting of our stockholders was hel@ctober 23, 2006, at our corporate offices in leyifor the election of directors and
approval of Corbin & Company LLP as our independegistered public accounting firm for our fiscalay ended December 30, 2006. We did
not solicit proxies pursuant to Regulation 14A unithe Act, and our board of directors, as descrihealir registration statement on Form S-1,
No. 33:-136735, was re-elected in its entirety. 10,897 0@@s were cast for, and none were cast agahesgpproval of Corbin & Company
LLP as our independent registered public accourfting There were no abstentions or broker non-sote
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stokholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seatties

Our common stock began trading on The NASDAQ Gldbatket under the trading symbol “NLS®h November 30, 2006. The high i
low sale prices for our common stock from the irimepof trading through December 30, 2006 were $add $11.04, respectively. Our
common stock was not publicly traded prior to Nobem30, 2006. The approximate number of holdemuoicommon stock as of February 9,
2007 was 47. We did not make any purchases ofa@uanmn stock.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends ocapital stock. Our current credit facility prohghthe payment of cash dividends.
Accordingly, we do not anticipate declaring or peycash dividends on our capital stock in the feeable future. Any payments of cash
dividends will be at the discretion of our boarddofctors, and will depend upon our results ofrapiens, earnings, capital requirements, legal
and contractual restrictions, and other factorsrasbrelevant by our board of directors.

Our board of directors and stockholders have preshoapproved our Amended and Restated 2000 Etndgntive Plan and our 2006
Equity Incentive Plan. Except as listed below, wendt have any equity based plans, including imtligl compensation arrangements, that
have not been approved by our stockholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities Weighted-average future issuance under
to be issued upon exercise exercise price of equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans approved

security holders 3,318,25( $3.34 985,00((2)
Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders 397,50((2) $1.35 —
Total 3,715,75( $3.13 985,00(

(1) Subject to certain adjustments, we curreattyable to issue a maximum of 1,000,000 sharesramon stock pursuant to awards granted
under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. That maximmumber will automatically increase on the first adyeach calendar year by the
lesser of (i) 500,000 shares and (ii) such smallenber of shares as may be determined by our lmfatidectors prior to that date.

(2) Consists entirely of warrants for the purehatshares of our common stock issued to non-gmepk See Note 13 to our consolidated
financial statements for additional information.
Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiemcorporated by reference into any future fjlimder the Securities Act of 1933 or
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedptto the extent that the Company specificalipiiporates it by reference into such
filing.
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The followinggraph compares our cumulative total stockholdemrnesince the inception of trading of our commarckton November 3i
2006 with the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index &it@ndard & Poor’s (S&P) Semiconductors Index. Tl assumes that the value of
the investment in our common stock and each inoekuding reinvestment of dividends) was $100 orvélaber 30, 2006.

Comparison of Historical Cumulative Total Return
among Netlist, Inc., NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) @thndard & Poor’s (S&P) Semiconductors Index
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Use of Proceed:

Our initial offer and sale to the public of shaod®ur common stock, par value $0.001 per shanmsyaunt to a registration statement on
Form S-1, No. 333:36735, was declared effective by the SecuritiesErchange Commission on November 29, 2006. We tefénis offering
as our “IPO”. Thomas Weisel Partners LLC was theaging underwriter for our IPO. We registered ia RO an aggregate of 7,187,500
shares of our common stock, of which 6,250,000eshasere registered and offered to the public ferameount, and 937,500 shares were
registered and offered to the public for the actadithe selling stockholders upon the exercisarobption granted to the underwriters to cover
over-allotments. All of the securities registeredhie IPO were sold, and the offering has beeniterted. The following chart sets forth, for us
and the selling stockholders, the aggregate pfitlecoffering amount registered, the aggregaterffy price of the amount sold, the aggregate
amount of the underwriting discount, the aggregateunt of fees and expenses incurred for our a¢cand the net offering proceeds to us
to the selling stockholders.

Aggregate

Offering Price of Fees anc
Aggregate Expenses Incurred
the Offering Offering Price of
Amount Underwriting for Netlist's Net Offering
Registered Amount Sold Discount Account Proceeds
Netlist, Inc. $43,750,00! $43,750,00! $3,062,00( $1,147,00( $39,541,00!
Selling Stockholders $ 6,562,50( $ 6,562,50( $ 459,37t — $ 6,103,12!
Total $50,312,50! $50,312,50! $3,521,37" $1,147,00(

The following chart sets forth the manner in whieh have used the net proceeds from the IPO of ajpabely $39.5 million as of
February 15, 2007, including any purposes for wffiiah (5) percent of the total offering proceedss@00,000 (whichever is less) has been
(in thousands):

Use of Net Proceeds:

Repayment of indebtedness and accrued int $ 1,80¢
Reduce outstanding borrowings under our revolvimg of credit 5,500
Payment to directors, officers or to persons owmérg(10) percent or more of ot

capital stock 500
Purchase of leaseholds and equipment for manufagttacility in the People’s

Republic of Chine 293
Investments in marketable securit 5,267
Long term investments in marketable securi 1,502
Temporary investments(1) 24,67C

Total $39,541

(1) Consists of investments in money market fuams in highly liquid debt instruments of U.S. meipalities, corporations and the U.S.
government and its agencies.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Dat

The selected consolidated financial data set foetbw should be read in conjunction with “ManagettseDiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” andaudited consolidated financial statements hadélated notes appearing elsewhere in
this report.

The selected consolidated financial data set foetbw are derived from our consolidated financiatements. The consolidated statement
of operations data for the years ended Januar@g,December 31, 2005 and December 30, 2006 hencbhsolidated balance sheet data as
of December 31, 2005 and December 30, 2006, aireedeirom our audited consolidated financial statets included elsewhere in this report.
The consolidated statement of operations datehoyears ended December 31, 2002, and Decemb20@3 ,and the consolidated balance
sheet data as of December 31, 2002, December @3, 20d January 1, 2005 are derived from our adidibesolidated financial statements not
included in this report.

Year Ended
December 31 December 27 December 31 December 30
January 1,
2002 2003 2005 2005 2006

(in thousands, except per share date
Consolidated Statement o
Operations Data:

Net sales $13,99¢ $100,37¢  $143,65¢ $79,85¢ $151,44¢
Cost of sales(1) 12,147 86,107 133,50: 73,892 129,18!
Gross profit 1,847 14,26¢ 10,15¢ 5,964 22,261
Operating expense
Research and development 491 11,75¢ 3,77C 2,961 3,31t
Selling, general and administrati
@) 1,652 15,21¢ 6,314 5,062 9,191
Total operating expenses 2,143 26,977 10,08¢ 8,023 12,50¢
Operating income (los: (296) (12,709 72 (2,059) 9,761
Other expense, net (290) (879) (1,386) (1,200) (1,849
Income (loss) before provision
(benefit) for income taxe (586) (13,58¢) (1,319 (3,259) 7,912
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 46 2,317 (340) (912) 2,844
Net income (loss) $ (632 $(15,909) $ (9749 $(2,34) $ 5,06
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ (0.07) $ (162 $ (009 $ (0.22 $ 043
Diluted $ (0.07) $ (162 $ (009 $ (0.22 $ 034

Weighted-average common share:
outstanding
Basic 9,200 9,831 10,671 10,673 11,70¢
Diluted 9,200 9,831 10,671 10,673 15,331

(1) Amounts include stock-based compensation as follows

Year Ended
December 31 December 27 January 1, December 31 December 30
2002 2003 2005 2005 2006
(in thousands)
Cost of sale: $ — $ 69 $ 29 $ 56 $104
Research and developmt 371 9,733 80 (52) 125
Selling, general and administrati 424 10,872 141 (65) 363
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December 31 December 27 December 31 December 30
January 1,
2002 2003 2005 2005 2006
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short

term investment $ 91 $ 1,907 $ 759 $ 953 $36,24:2
Total asset 9,12¢ 22,404 22,11C 25,842 87,694
Total debt(1 3,77¢€ 3,464 9,379 13,921 21,501
Stockholder’ equity 754 5,981 5,261 2,855 50,244

(1) Amounts include outstanding revolving line of ctdailance as of each respective date.

Effective January 1, 2003, we changed our fiscal y)@m a calendar year to a 52/53-week fiscal gealing on the Saturday closest to
December 31.

ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should bad in conjunction with “Selected
Consolidated Financial Data” and our audited conisatted financial statements and the related natekided elsewhere in this report. In
addition to historical consolidated financial infoation, the following discussion and analysis corgtdorward-looking statements that involve
risks, uncertainties, estimates and assumptions.a@wal results could differ materially from thoagticipated by these forward-looking
statements as a result of many factors, includiugé discussed in this report under “Risk Factors”.

Overview

We design, manufacture and sell high performanamong subsystems for the server, high performancgpeting and communications
markets. Our memory subsystems consist of DRAMd@$ other components assembled on a PCB. We engidgeur OEM customers from
the earliest stages of new product definition, Wwhpcovides us unique insight into their full rargfesystem architecture and performance
requirements. This close collaboration has alsmnedt us to develop a significant level of systemseetise. We leverage a portfolio of
proprietary technologies and design techniquedydig efficient planar design, alternative packagiechniques and custom semiconductor
logic, to deliver memory subsystems with high meyraensity, small form factor, high signal integrigttractive thermal characteristics and
low cost per bit.

Due to their importance to overall system architeetand performance, our products must undergahgrgalification reviews by our
OEM customers, which may last up to six monthsaddition, in order to penetrate large OEMs, we hgpecally been required to demonstr
our ability to meet strict standards for qualitystomer service and turnaround time by first suipglyess complex products into a limited ra
of high volume applications. For example, the @&ifiroducts we sold to IBM were used in mobile catimy applications. The majority of our
sales of subsequent products to IBM have beenidbré&nd server applications, our primary marketifocConsistent with the concentrated
nature of the OEM customer base in our target migrkesmall number of large customers have histllyiaccounted for a significant portion
of our net sales. Dell, IBM and Lenovo represer®®8%, 33% and 2%, respectively, of our net saldsaal 2006, and 35%, 20% and 13%,
respectively, of our net sales in fiscal 2005. @keline in sales to Lenovo was due to our saleshasip on high-end server applications. We
expect that Dell and IBM will continue to represargignificant percentage of our net sales foeasti the next 12 months.

We commenced operations in September 2000 andlipitocused on memory subsystems for the teleconications markets. Beginnil
in the second quarter of 2001, we shifted our fdoubke server and high performance computing msykiee in large part to the
telecommunications market downturn.
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In 2002, we became a qualified supplier for RLX Aralogies, Inc., a blade server manufacturer. Guleeoproducts we initially developed f
RLX, our proprietary 2-inch form factor, 1-gigabyteemory subsystem, led to the development of agraf@dditional memory subsystems.

We began qualifying our 2-inch form factor, 1-gigghmemory subsystem with Dell in the second quatt@002 and started shipping it
to Dell in the fourth quarter of 2002. Our sale®l continued to increase throughout fiscal 2608 the first three quarters of fiscal 2004, as
we began to ship more of our memory subsystemdamar number of Dell facilities in the U.S., Epsoand Asia. During this time, we also
qualified new products with other leading served high performance computing OEMs. Beginning infdwath quarter of fiscal 2004, issues
associated with the transition from DDR to DDR2 DR Architectures, including the requirement for i@packaging, assembly and hand
techniques, resulted in a significant decreaseiirsales to Dell. In response to this revenue deglive carried out two workforce reductions in
fiscal 2005 to reduce expenses and preserve caslsales to Dell began to recover in the fourthrwaof fiscal 2005. Also during fiscal 2005,
our sales to IBM and Lenovo began to increase foogmitly.

Our sales to IBM continued to grow significantlyrohg fiscal 2006, driven by high demand for IBMisd of blade servers that
incorporates our proprietary very low profile memeubsystem. Sales to Dell also grew significaayour DDR2 products began to ship in
volume. In addition, we began shipments to othadileg OEMSs, including Gateway and Hewlett-Packsved. have several new products in
various stages of qualification that we anticipatié be incorporated into additional platforms cemtly in development at our customers.

Key Business Metrics

The following describes certain line items in otatsments of operations that are important to mamagt's assessment of our financial
performance:

Net Sales. Net sales consist primarily of sales of our highfgmance memory subsystems, net of a provisior$timated returns under
our right of return policies, which range up to&fy/s. We generally do not have long-term saleseageats with our customers. Although
OEM customers typically provide us with non-bindfiegecasts of future product demand over spec#iigals of time, they generally place
purchase orders with us approximately two weeledivence of scheduled delivery. Selling prices ypedally negotiated monthly, based on
competitive market conditions and the current pdEBRAM ICs. Purchase orders generally have neelation or rescheduling penalty
provisions. We often ship our products to our cors’ international manufacturing sites. All of @ales to date, however, are denominated in
U.S. dollars. We also sell excess component invgrdtbDRAM ICs to distributors and other users afmory ICs. These sales accounted for
8% and 24% of our net sales in fiscal 2006 and 20&pectively. We expect that component invensafgs will continue to decrease as a
percentage of net sales in future periods as wersify our customer base and therefore are ahlseéacomponents in a wider range of memory
subsystems.

Cost of Sales. Our cost of sales includes the cost of materiatsufacturing costs, depreciation and amortizatioegoipment, inventor
valuation provisions, and occupancy costs and athecated fixed costs. The DRAM ICs incorporategbiour products constitute a significant
portion of our cost of sales, and thus our costatés will fluctuate based on the current pricBBAM ICs. We attempt to pass through such
DRAM IC cost fluctuations to our customers by freqgtly renegotiating pricing prior to the placemehtheir purchase orders. To the exten
are successful, a large majority of our product &pgariable, and thus our cost of sales and greagin percentages may not be significantly
impacted by changes in sales volume. However,ales prices of our memory subsystems can alsafitetdue to competitive situations
unrelated to the pricing of DRAM ICs, which willfaEt gross margins. The gross margin on our sdlegaess component DRAM IC invent
is much lower than the gross margin on our
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sales of our memory subsystems. As a result, adserin DRAM IC inventory sales as a percentagriobverall sales would result in an
improved overall gross margin. We assess the vatuaf our inventories on a monthly basis and rd@provision to cost of sales as neces
to reduce inventories to the lower of cost or maviedue.

Research and DevelopmentResearch and development expense consists prinodgiyiployee and independent contractor compenme
and related costs, stock-based compensation, cemaiated design software licenses, reference deigelopment costs, patent-related fees,
depreciation or rental of evaluation equipment, aoclipancy and other allocated overhead costs.iAtsoded in research and development
expense are the costs of material and overheadeiathe production of engineering samples of pesducts under development or products
used solely in the research and development proCesscustomers typically do not separately comatnas for design and engineering work
involved in developing application-specific prodsifor them. All research and development costegpensed as incurred. As we continue to
develop additional proprietary technologies, wacipaite that research and development expenditvitemcrease.

Selling, General and Administrative Selling, general and administrative expenses cbpsgisarily of employee salaries and related ci
stock-based compensation, independent sales repatige commissions, professional services, proonali and other selling and marketing
expenses, and occupancy and other allocated owkdosés. A significant portion of our selling effois directed at building relationships with
OEMs and working through the product approval anali§ication process with them. Therefore, the afshaterial and overhead related to
products manufactured for qualification is includedelling expenses. As we continue to servicstag and penetrate new OEM customers,
we anticipate that our sales and marketing expenskisicrease. We also anticipate that our genaral administrative expenses will increase
as a percentage of net sales as we incur accowarithipgal expenses associated with our ongointicpdporting obligations and compliance
with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@Q§F2.

Provision (Benefit) for Income TaxesOur income tax provision (benefit) is basedloa dtatutory federal tax rate of 35% and is typycal
impacted by state taxes and permanent book-tagrdiftes.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegsts in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the U.S. requires
to make estimates and assumptions that affecefirted amounts of assets and liabilities and aseces of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statememdstie reported amounts of net sales and expensieg dhe reporting period. By their nature,
these estimates and assumptions are subject tharent degree of uncertainty. We base our estsoateur historical experience, knowledge
of current conditions and our beliefs of what cooddtur in the future considering available inforioat We review our estimates on an on-
going basis. Actual results may differ from thestineates, which may result in material adversectdfen our operating results and financial
position. We believe the following critical accoungt policies involve our more significant assumps@and estimates used in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements:

Revenue Recognition.We recognize revenues in accordance with thar8ies and Exchange Commission’s Staff AccounBugjetin
(“SAB”) No. 104, Revenue Recognitiarnder the provisions of SAB No. 104, we recogmeenues when there is persuasive evidence of an
arrangement, product delivery and acceptance hemgrieed, the sales price is fixed or determinadhel collectibility of the resulting receival
is reasonably assured.

For all sales, we use a binding purchase ordevidsrce of an arrangement. Delivery occurs wherdg@oe shipped for customers with
FOB Shipping Point terms and upon receipt for anstis with FOB
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Destination terms, at which time title and riskdaxs transfer to the customer. Shipping documemtsised to verify delivery and customer
acceptance. We assess whether the sales prigedsdi determinable based on the payment termsiasso with the transaction and whether
the sales price is subject to refund. Customergamerally allowed limited rights of return for tp30 days, except for sales of excess
inventories, which contain no right-of-return plages. Estimated returns are provided for at tie tf sale based on historical experience or
specific identification of an event necessitatingserve. Returns from customers have not beerrialdteany period as our principal
customers have adopted build-to-order manufacturindels or just-in-time management processes. \fée afstandard product warranty to
our customers and have no other post-shipmentathdigs. We assess collectibility based on the tkedthiness of the customer as determined
by credit checks and evaluations, as well as tstooter’'s payment history. Most of our internatiostapments are made to third- party
inventory warehouses, or hubs, and we recogniznieywhen the inventory is pulled from the hubuee in production by the customer. We
receive a report from the customer on a daily basi€ating the inventories pulled from a hub feewy the customer, and perform a daily
reconciliation of inventories shipped to and pullscthe customer to those inventories reflectethercustomer’s reports to ensure that sales
are recognized in the appropriate periods.

Customers are generally allowed limited rightsettirn for up to 30 days. Estimated returns areigeal/for at the time of sale based on
historical experience or specific identificationasf event necessitating a reserve. While thesenehave historically been within our
expectations and the provisions established, weataguarantee that we will continue to experienaglar return rates in the future. Any
significant increase in product failure rates ameliesulting product returns could have a matedakrse effect on our operating results for the
period or periods in which such returns materialize

All amounts billed to customers related to shippamgl handling are classified as net sales, whHileoats incurred by us for shipping and
handling are classified as cost of sales.

Warranty Reserve. We offer warranties on our memory subsystem&iggly ranging from one to three years, dependimg¢he product
and negotiated terms of purchase agreements witbustiomers. Such warranties require us to repaigmace defective product returned to us
during such warranty period at no cost to the gusto Our estimates for warranty related costsecerded at the time of sale based on
historical and estimated future product returngatied expected repair or replacement costs. Windle sosts have historically been
insignificant, unexpected changes in failure ratmdd have a material adverse impact on us.

Accounts Receivable.We perform credit evaluations of our customérsincial condition and limit the amount of creditended to our
customers as deemed necessary, but generally eaguirollateral. We continuously monitor collecéand payments from our customers and
maintain a provision for estimated credit losseseblaupon our historical experience and any spewifitomer collection issues that we have
identified. Generally, these credit losses havenlveiéhin our expectations and the provisions esthbH. However, we cannot guarantee that
we will continue to experience credit loss ratesilsir to those we have experienced in the past.

Our accounts receivable are highly concentratedngracsmall number of customers, and a significaahge in the liquidity or financial
position of one of these customers could have @rnahtidverse effect on the collectibility of owcaunts receivable, our liquidity and our
future operating results.

Inventories. We value our inventories at the lower of thaiattost to purchase or manufacture the inventotji@net realizable value
of the inventory. Cost is determined on a firstfirst-out basis and includes raw materials, ladroadt manufacturing overhead. We regularly
review inventory quantities on hand and on order @ord a provision for excess and obsolete iroresg based primarily on our estimated
forecast of product demand and production requirggt®r the next three to six months. Once estabtiswrite-downs are considered
permanent adjustments to the cost basis of thesexareobsolete
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inventories. A significant decrease in demand fargroducts could result in an increase in the axhofiexcess inventory quantities on hand.
In addition, our estimates of future product demaray prove to be inaccurate, in which case we naa lunderstated or overstated the
provision required for excess and obsolete invegntorthe future, if our inventories are determinede overvalued, we would be required to
recognize additional expense in our cost of saléseatime of such determination. Likewise, if doventories are determined to be
undervalued, we may have over-reported our costalet in previous periods and would be requirgedognize additional gross profit at the
time such inventories are sold. Although we male@rgveasonable effort to ensure the accuracy ofarecasts of future product demand, any
significant unanticipated changes in demand orrteldyical developments could have a material effecthe value of our inventories and our
reported operating results.

Long-Lived Assets. We review the recoverability of the carrying vabfdong-lived assets on an annual basis or whenexemts or
changes in circumstances indicate that the caringunt of an asset may not be recoverable. Regoligy of these assets is determined
based upon the forecasted undiscounted futureasétftows from the operations to which the assstde, utilizing our best estimates,
appropriate assumptions and projections at the fithese projected future cash flows may vary siggiftly over time as a result of increased
competition, changes in technology, fluctuationgé@mand, consolidation of our customers and redustin average selling prices. If the
carrying value is determined not to be recoverébolen future operating cash flows, the asset is dmkimpaired and an impairment loss is
recognized to the extent the carrying value excéeelgstimated fair market value of the asset.

Stock-Based CompensationWe account for equity issuances to non-emplojreascordance with Statement of Financial Accaumti
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123ccounting for Stock Based Compensatiand Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 9618,
Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issus@®ther Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjiimre with Selling, Goods and Servic.
All transactions in which goods or services aredbesideration received for the issuance of equngtruments are accounted for based on the
fair value of the consideration received or the ¥ailue of the equity instrument issued, whichagenore reliably measurable. The
measurement date used to determine the fair véltie @quity instrument issued is the earlier @f dlate on which the third-party performance
is complete or the date on which it is probable geaformance will occur.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for stodebdaompensation issued to employees using thesittvalue method of accounting
prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB"pi@ion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employaed related pronouncements.
Under this method, compensation expense was rexegjoiver the respective vesting period based oaxbess, on the date of grant, of the
value of our common stock over the grant price ofidorfeitures. Deferred stock-based compensatias amortized on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period of each grant. During tharg ended December 31, 2005 and January 1, 200k;b@sed compensation expense, n
forfeitures was $(61,000) and $250,000, respegtivel

On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 12%Rjre-Based Paymenivhich requires the measurement and recognition of
compensation expense for all share-based paymemtiawnade to our employees and directors relatedrtdmended and Restated 2000
Equity Incentive Plan based on estimated fair v@alifde adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modifiedpective transition method, which
requires the application of the accounting standardf January 1, 20086, the first day of our fisesr 2006. Our consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended Decemb@0886 reflect the impact of adopting SFAS No. B3(n accordance with the modified
prospective transition method, our consolidatedrtial statements for prior periods have not bestated to reflect, and do not include, the
impact of SFAS No. 123(R). The value of the portidnhe award that is ultimately expected to veseicognized as expense over the requisite
service periods in our consolidated statement efatpons. As stock-based compensation expensenmzealin the consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 30, 200&ssd on awards ultimately expected to vest, ibleas reduced
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for estimated forfeitures. SFAS No. 123(R) requiceitures to be estimated at the time of gramt eevised, if necessary, in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from thoseigsites. The estimated average forfeiture ratenferyear ended December 30, 2006 of 8% was
based on historical forfeiture experience and esttoh future employee forfeitures. In our pro foimfarmation required under SFAS No. 123
for the periods prior to fiscal 2006, we accourftadforfeitures as they occurred.

Employee stock-based compensation expense recagmimer SFAS No. 123(R) for the year ended Dece@®e2006 was $592,000,
determined by the Black-Scholes valuation modeloABecember 30, 2006, total unrecognized compemsabst, adjusted for estimated
forfeitures, related to unvested stock options $#687,000, which is expected to be recognizedhaxpense over a weighted-average period
of approximately 4 years. See Note 2 to our codatdid financial statements for additional inforroati

Income Taxes. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilitisgtda@n the differences between the financial setewarrying values
and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Wela€eg review our deferred tax assets for recovilitgland establish a valuation allowance
based on historical taxable income, projected &tarable income, and the expected timing of thersals of existing temporary difference:
we operate at a loss for an extended period of inee unable to generate sufficient future taxantome, or if there is a material change in
the actual effective tax rates or time period withihich the underlying temporary differences becéaxable or deductible, we could be
required to record a valuation allowance againisired significant portion of our deferred tax assehich could substantially increase our
effective tax rate for such period. Any significahtanges in statutory tax rates or the amount pfalwation allowance could have a material
effect on the value of our deferred tax assetdiabdities, and our reported financial results.

Our current effective tax rate is approximately 38%e expect this rate to decrease if we generatfi@pfrom our planned manufacturing
facility in the PRC in fiscal 2007. This decreas@xpected to be attributable to the favorabldreatment available in the region in which we
intend to establish our operation. The magnitudin@fdecrease is not known, as we have not firthliwe tax strategy as it relates to the
planned PRC operation.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our consolidatedestaents of operations for the periods indicated:
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Year Ended
December 31 December 30
January 1,
2005 2005 2006
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data
Net sales $ 143,65¢ $79,85¢ $151,44¢
Cost of sales(1 133,503 73,892 129,181
Gross profit 10,156 5,964 22,261
Operating expense
Research and development 3,770 2,961 3,31¢
Selling, general and administrative(1) 6,314 5,062 9,191
Total operating expenses 10,084 8,023 12,50¢
Operating income (los: 72 (2,059) 9,761
Other expense, n (1,386) (1,200) (1,849
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for
income taxe: (1,314) (3,259) 7,912
Provision (benefit) for income tax (340) (912) 2,844
Net income (loss $ (979 $ (2,3479) $ 5,06¢
(1) Amounts include stock-based compensation expenkslass:
Year Ended
January 1, December 31 December 30
2005 2005 2006
Cost of sales $ 29 $ 56 $104
Research and developmt 80 (52) 125
Selling, general and administrati 141 (65) 363




The following table sets forth our consolidatedestzents of operations as a percentage of netfgaild®e periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31 December 30
January 1,
2005 2005 2006
Consolidated Statement of Operation:
Data:
Net sales 100.0% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 92.9 92.5 85.3
Gross profit 7.1 7.5 14.7
Operating expense
Research and developme 2.6 3.7 2.2
Selling, general and administrative 4.4 6.4 6.1
Total operating expenses 7.0 10.1 8.3
Operating income (los 0.1 (2.6) 6.4
Other expense, n (1.0 (1.5 (1.2
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for
income taxe: (0.9 (4.2 52
Provision (benefit) for income tax (0.2) (1.1 1.9
Net income (loss (0.7)% (3.00% 3.3%

Year Ended December 30, 2006 as Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net Sales. Net sales for the year ended December 30, 2006 $l&r&.4 million, an increase of $71.5 million, @9, over the year end
December 31, 2005. Approximately $32.7 million keé increase was attributable to higher unit salesiovery low profile memory
subsystems. In addition, DDR2 server memory subsys@ales increased by $28.0 million and DDR subsysales decreased by $8.1 million
due to customers transitioning to DDR2 architetuBales of memory subsystems used to control dethtrarrays of independent disks
(RAIDs) commenced late in the second quarter e&fi2006 and contributed $22.4 million to the ire in revenues. Finally, sales of laptop
and desktop personal computer, or PC, memory stdyagsecreased $3.5 million as we focused on sélg@gher margin server memory
subsystems.

Sales of our component inventory to distributord ather users of memory ICs represented 8% anddf4%ét sales for the years ended
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, resplyctive expect that component inventory sales walir@ase as a percentage of net sa
future periods as we diversify our customer basktharefore are able to use components in a wadeye of memory subsystems.

Gross Profit and Gross Margin. Gross profit for the year ended December 30, 2086 $22.3 million, an increase of $16.3 million, or
273%, over the year ended December 31, 2005. @Grasgin increased to 14.7% from 7.5% for the sam@@eThe increase in both gross
profit and gross margin is primarily attributabteincreased sales of our very low profile memorysystems and memory subsystems to
control RAIDs, which generate higher margins duthtar innovative design, as well as lower margioducts becoming a smaller portion of
our overall product sales mix.

Research and DevelopmentResearch and development expenses for the yead Eatember 30, 2006 were $3.3 million, an incredse
$0.3 million compared to the year ended DecembeRB05. The increase is related in part to incréasdaries, bonuses, and stock-based
compensation. These increases were offset by aasein depreciation expense, outside serviceprafigssional fees.
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Selling, General and Administrative Selling, general and administrative expenses ferytrar ended December 30, 2006 were $9.2
million, an increase of $4.1 million compared te rear ended December 31, 2005. The increaseilsugdble to higher sales commissions
related to increased net sales, increased sadriebonuses and related costs due to an increasesonnel, higher costs related to
qualification of new products at customers, incegbstock-based compensation, and a provision fbideat of approximately $0.4 million
related to a single distribution customer.

Other Expense, Net.Other expense, net, for the year ended Decemb&08®8, was $1.8 million, an increase of $0.6 millemmpared to
the year ended December 31, 2005 due to higheesitexpense related to increased borrowings wnderevolving line of credit and
convertible notes payable.

Provision (Benefit) for Income TaxesThe provision for income taxes for the year endedddnber 30, 2006 was $2.8 million compared
to an income tax benefit of $0.9 million in the yeaded December 31, 2005. The change was due tittaining profitability in fiscal 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended January 1, 2005

Net Sales. Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2005 $7&® million, a decrease of $63.8 million, or 44%m the year ended
January 1, 2005. This decrease was due to a $illignmdecrease in net sales to one key custonagtiglly offset by the commencement of
shipments of our very low profile subsystem dutiing year ended December 31, 2005. The decreast §ales to the key customer was
attributable to its shift in memory technology fraDR to DDR2. Our net sales decreased significamslyhe key customer delayed qualifying
new suppliers during this transition.

Sales of our component inventory to distributord ather users of memory ICs represented 24% andd0%t sales for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, respectiVeéincrease in the proportion of component saksdue to the overall decrease in net
sales, as sales of component inventory decreas8d$ion from the year ended January 1, 2005.

Gross Profit and Gross Margin. Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2085 $6.0 million, a decrease of $4.2 million, or 41%
from the year ended January 1, 2005. Gross mangineased to 7.5% for the year ended December 85, 26m 7.1% for the year ended
January 1, 2005. The decrease in gross profit wdisidable to the overall decrease in net salég. ificrease in gross margin was attributak
the higher margins realized on sales of our venypoofile memory subsystems compared to our othedyorcts.

Research and DevelopmentResearch and development expenses in the year Bebednber 31, 2005 were $3.0 million, a decrease of
$0.8 million from the year ended January 1, 200%s Tecrease was attributable to reductions inopexs, a decrease in stock-based
compensation expense due to forfeitures of equgras related to personnel reductions, as wellras@very of costs through the liquidation
of engineering samples.

Selling, General and Administrative Selling, general and administrative costs in therymded December 31, 2005 were $5.1 million, a
decrease of $1.2 million compared to the year eddedary 1, 2005. This decrease was primarilyedltd the absence in 2005 of costs
incurred in 2004 related to our proposed equitgiriicing through an initial public offering. Thesdeoing-related costs totaled $1.0 million
during the year ended January 1, 2005.

Other Expense, Net.Other expense, net, during the year ended DeceBih@005 was $1.2 million, a decrease of $0.2 amltompared
to the year ended January 1, 2005. The decreaseelated to a reduction in interest expense duketoeased usage of accounts receivable
financing related to a key customer.
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Provision (Benefit) for Income TaxesThe benefit for income taxes during the year erdedember 31, 2005 increased $0.6 million
compared to the year ended January 1, 2005 die todreased pre-tax losses in the year ended Deszedi, 2005.

Selected Quarterly Financial Information

The following table presents our unaudited quaytsthtements of operations for each of the eightteus in the two-year period ended
December 30, 2006. You should read the followirgetén conjunction with our audited consolidatetaficial statements and related notes
contained elsewhere in this report. We have prepoe underlying unaudited financial statementshensame basis as our audited consolic
financial statements included in this report, whintiude all adjustments, consisting only of normeadurring adjustments, that we consider

necessary for a fair presentation of our finang@sition and operating results for the quartersgmeed. Operating results for any quarter are
not necessarily indicative of results for any fetperiods.

Three Months Ended

April 2, October 1, December September December
July 2, April 1, July 1,
2005 2005 2005 31, 2005 2006 2006 30, 2006 30, 2006
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Net sales $20,95¢ $15,53¢ $20,057 $ 23,304 $26,02C $39,91¢ $43,508 $42,00¢
Cost of sales 20,087 14,232 18,162 21,41C 23,466 33,981 36,524 35,21C
Gross profit 869 1,307 1,894 1,894 2,554 5,933 6,981 6,799
Operating expense
Research and developme 916 960 617 468 666 848 874 927
Selling, general & administrative 1,194 1,106 1,394 1,368 1,803 2,108 2,583 2,697
Total operating expenses 2,110 2,066 2,011 1,836 2,469 2,956 3,457 3,624
Operating income (los: (1,241) (759) (117) 58 85 2,977 3,524 3,175
Other expense, net 248 235 254 463 410 534 652 253
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for incotages (1,489) (994) (371) (405) (325) 2,443 2,872 2,922
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (399) (296) (116) (101) (83) 895 1,084 948
Net income (loss) $ (1,090 $ (698) $ (255 $  (304) $ (242) $ 1,54¢ $ 1,78¢ $ 1,974
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ (0.10) $ (0.07) $ (0.03) $ (0.02) $ (002 $ 0.14 $ 0.16 $ 014
Diluted $ (0.10) $ (0.07) $ (0.03) $ (0.02) $ (002 $ o011 $ 012 $ 012
Weightet-average common shares outstand
Basic 10,672 10,672 10,673 10,673 10,753 11,223 11,23E 13,616
Diluted 10,672 10,672 10,673 10,673 10,753 15,681 15,401 16,793

Historically, our quarterly operating results hdluetuated significantly. These fluctuations arevarily attributable to the cyclical nature
of the industry in which we operate, including ches in revenue related to additions of new custeptbe ramp up of new products, products
reaching the end of their life cycles, customezshnology transitions, and other similar reasorssaAesult, we believe that the period-to-
period comparisons of our net sales and operaéisglts are not necessarily meaningful measurestufef operating performance and should
not be relied upon as indications of that futurdgrenance. We expect that our future operatingltesuill fluctuate from quarter-tquarter an
yearto-year, which may make it difficult to predictrofuture performance and could cause our stoclegddluctuate and decline.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows f@ periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31 December 30
January 1,
2005 2005 2006
Net cash provided by (used in)
Operating activitie: $ (6,567) $ (4,609) $ (9,785)
Investing activities (496) 1,332 (9,028)
Financing activities 5,915 3,470 48,83E
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ (1,14¥) $ 194 $30,022

Since our inception in 2000, we have financed quarations primarily through issuances of equity debt securities and cash generated
from operations. We received gross proceeds of $#I®n from the sale of shares of our capitalct@ 2000. During 2001 and 2003, we
received total proceeds of approximately $1.8 orillirom the sale of convertible notes. During 2008 received total proceeds of $1.0 mill
from the sale of convertible notes. During 2006,reeeived proceeds of $2.0 million under a new tieran facility. We have also funded our
operations with a revolving line of credit under dank credit facility, from capitalized lease galfions, financing of receivables and from the
sale and leaseback of our manufacturing facilityaifbility under our revolving line of credit deased to $800,000 at the end of the second
quarter of fiscal 2005 due to a reduction in ourdaing base caused by the decrease in revenueDelmAvailability has increased to $4.9
million as of December 30, 2006 due to an incréaseir borrowing base primarily as a result of mawe growth during fiscal 2006.

In December 2006, the Company sold 6,250,000 sldiiescommon stock in its initial public offerirg an offering price of $7.00 per
share, resulting in total proceeds of $39.5 millioet of underwriters’ discounts and offering exgesiof approximately $4.2 million.

Operating Activities. Cash used in operating activities for the yeateel December 30, 2006 was $9.8 million comparei#t6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005. This charagedwe to an increase in cash flow related tormete of $7.4 million offset by a decre
in cash flow related to accounts receivable of $6ilBon due to a higher proportion of net saleggegenerated by customers with longer
payment terms; a decrease in cash flow relateéttcmentories of $13.2 million as we increaseckimory levels to support higher sales
volumes and an increase in cash flow related towads payable of $4.1 million as we trade finanaedinventory increase and other operating
expenses. In addition, cash flow related to inctemes payable increased $0.6 million as we attgmefitability in the first half of 2006 and
started to accumulate an income tax liability thas paid later in 2006.

Cash used in operating activities for the year dridecember 31, 2005 was $4.6 million as compar&®16 million for the year ended
January 1, 2005. This change was attributablediecaease in cash flow related to net loss of $ilibm a decrease in cash flow related to
accounts receivable of $0.8 million due to a higtveportion of sales being generated by custométslanger payment terms; and a decrease
in cash flow related to inventories of $2.2 milligrhese declines were offset by an increase in tastrelated to accounts payable of $4.0
million and an increase in cash flow related tmime taxes of $2.9 million as we continued to irlosses, did not have to pay income taxes
received a tax refund in 2005 as a result of cagyiack net operating losses to prior years.

Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities for tharyended December 30, 2006 was $9.0 million as eoatlto cash
generated by investing activities of $1.3 milliar the year ended December 31, 2005. This charaftriilsutable to a decrease in proceeds of
$1.8 million received from the sale of the buildimgusing our manufacturing operation in 2005 teeaiapital to fund our operations; an
increase in manufacturing equipment purchases .6f ®ilion required to support increased sales
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volumes and long term and short term investmengspiirtion of the proceeds from the IPO of $6.8iamil

Net cash provided from investing activities was3®illion in 2005 as compared to net cash usedvesting activities of $0.5 million in
2004. This change is attributable to the proceé®d @ million from the sale of the building houginur manufacturing operation in 2005 to
raise capital to fund our operations. We currelgise back the building, and there was no disromgfonanufacturing due to this transaction.

Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities foe frear ended December 30, 2006 was $48.8 milliaoapared to
net cash provided by financing activities of $3.#lion for the year ended December 31, 2005. Thiange was primarily due the Company’s
sale of its common stock in its initial public affey resulting in total proceeds of $39.5 milliovet of underwriters’ discounts and offering
expenses of approximately $4.2 million and incrdassage of our revolving line of credit to finaneerking capital needs as a result of our
accelerating growth.

Net cash provided from financing activities in 208&s $3.5 million as compared to $5.9 million ir020This change is attributable to
approximately $1.4 million less in net borrowinggmst our revolving line of credit and an increasaet payments on capital leases and other
debt of $1.0 million.

Capital Resources

In August 2006, we amended our credit agreemetit eiit bank. The credit agreement, as amended,d@s¥or a revolving line of credit
with maximum borrowings of $25 million, a term loah$2 million, and an equipment financing linecoédit with maximum borrowings of $2
million. Prior to August 2006, the credit agreempravided for a revolving line of credit of $15 ifioh and no term loan or equipment line of
credit. In August 2006, we used approximately $llioni of the proceeds from the term loan to repagwertible debt of $950,000 plus accrued
interest that had become due and payable. Theesiteate under the term loan was less than ththieatonvertible debt repaid.

Under the revolving line of credit, we may borrop/to the greater of 85% of eligible accounts reaki® plus the least of (i) a percentage
of eligible inventory determined from time to tirbg the Company’s bank, (ii) 80% of the orderly idption value, as defined, of eligible
inventories, and (iii) $7 million. Interest is pdya monthly at the prime rate of 8.25% as of Decen@®06. Outstanding borrowings under the
revolving line of credit were $19.2 million as oEBember 30, 2006 and $9.5 million as of DecembgRBQa5. Borrowing availability as of
December 30, 2006 was $4.9 million.

Under the new equipment financing line of credig, nvay borrow up to 80% of the cost of equipmentipases up to the maximum of $2
million. Interest on equipment line of credit adeas was payable at the prime rate plus 0.5% pitrd Company’s initial public offering in
December 2006 and was reduced to the prime rateatter. Principal is due monthly through the miggutate of the credit agreement in
July 2008, when all unpaid principal and interestiie. Outstanding borrowings under the new equiptime of credit were $1.1 million as of
December 30, 2006.

The $2 million term loan was fully repaid in Deceanf2006 in connection with the closing of our @lifpublic offering.

Under the terms of the credit agreement, as amendedre required to comply with certain finaneiatl other covenants. The financial
covenants require us to achieve minimum book nethvan a monthly basis, minimum net income on atguly basis, and limit annual capital
expenditures under a defined annual cap. Also,r@eeguired to achieve a minimum debt service @yerratio in relation to the term loan ¢
equipment line of credit. While we are currentlycompliance with all financial covenants and exgecehaintain compliance for the
foreseeable future, we have in the past been iatido of one or more covenants. As of December28D5, January 28, 2006 and February
2006, we were not in compliance with covenantsteelao minimum book net worth, maximum year to datd monthly net loss as a result of
the unanticipated decline in our revenues in fi2€l5 and early fiscal 2006
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as compared to the forecasts that were utilizegbtablish the covenants. A delay in the delivergudited financial statements for fiscal 2004
and fiscal 2005 due to turnover in staffing witbiur finance department caused us to violate anathenant. Our finance staffing has been
stabilized since the beginning of fiscal 2006. lprin2006, we received a waiver from our lenderdbrof these covenant violations. We can
assure you that we will not violate one or moreag@ants in the future. If we were to be in violat@frcovenants under our credit agreement,
our lender could choose to accelerate paymentla@uttanding loan balances. There can be no asseithat we would be able to quickly
obtain equivalent or suitable replacement finandéintiis event. If we were not able to secure aléve sources of funding, such acceleration
would have a material adverse impact on our firerandition.

We have in the past utilized equipment leasingr@reanents to finance capital expenditures. Equiprieaises will continue to be a
financing alternative that we may pursue in theifeit

We believe our existing cash balances, borrowirgglability under our bank credit facility, and thash expected to be generated from
operations, will be sufficient to meet our antidgrhcash needs for at least the next 12 monthsfudure capital requirements will depend on
many factors, including our levels of net sales,timing and extent of expenditures to supportaedeand development activities, the
expansion of manufacturing capacity both domesyieaid internationally and the continued marketegtance of our products. We could be
required, or may choose, to seek additional funttingugh public or private equity or debt finana@nén addition, in connection with any futi
acquisitions, we may require additional funding ethinay be provided in the form of additional debéquity financing or a combination
thereof. These additional funds may not be avalalnl terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Contractual Obligations
The following table outlines our principal obligatis and commitments, excluding periodic intereghpnts, as of December 30, 2006:

After 5
Within
One Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Years Total
(in thousands)
Scheduled payments under contractual obligations:
Long-term debt $ 595 $ 687 $179 $— $1,461
Capital lease obligations 438 318 46 — 802
Operating leases 173 260 124 — 557
Purchase commitments 690 — — e 690
Total 1,89¢€ 1,26¢ 349 — 3,51C
Potential cash requirements under existing comnmitse
Letters of credit 500 — — = 500
Total $2,39€ $1,26¢ $349 $—  $4,01C

We believe that funds expected to be generated fiuttme operations will be sufficient to satisfyeie contractual obligations and
commercial commitments and that the ultimate paymassociated with these commitments will not heveaterial adverse impact on our
liquidity position.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation NoA¢8ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of FASB Statement
No. 109(“FIN 48"), which clarifies the accounting for untainty in income taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a redegnthreshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition aneasurement of a tax position taken or expdotée taken in a tax return. The

Interpretation requires that the Company recogimizke financial statements the impact of tax positif that position is more likely than not
of being sustained on audit, based on the techmieaits
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of the position. FIN 48 also provides guidance eredognition, classification, interest and pensjte&ecounting in interim periods and
disclosure. The provisions of FIN 48 are effecfimefiscal years beginning after December 15, 286 the cumulative effect of the change
accounting principle recorded as an adjustmenetpriming retained earnings. The Company is culyéntthe process of assessing the impact
the adoption of FIN 48 will have on its consolidhfaancial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishesmé&work
for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disates about fair value measurements. SpecificABBAS No. 157 sets forth a definition of
fair value, and establishes a hierarchy prioritizine inputs to valuation techniques, giving thghleist priority to quoted prices in active mar
for identical assets and liabilities and the lows#trity to unobservable inputs. The provisionsS6fAS No. 157 are generally required to be
applied on a prospective basis, except to certaam€ial instruments accounted for under SFAS 88, Accounting for Derivative Instrumer
and Hedging Activitiesfor which the provisions of SFAS No. 157 shouéddpplied retrospectively. The Company will adopAS No. 157 ir
the first quarter of 2008 and is still evaluatihe effect, if any, on its financial position or uéis of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued SAB No, Co8sidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemevtien Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statem. SAB No. 108 was issued in order to eliminatediversity in practice surrounding how
public companies quantify financial statement naitsshents. SAB No. 108 requires that registrantatifyaerrors using both a balance sheet
and income statement approach and evaluate whaither approach results in a misstated amountwian all relevant quantitative and
gualitative factors are considered, is materiak @tloption of this statement is not expected t@ lramaterial impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition or results of giiems.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
I nterest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in intenat®ts relates primarily to our bank credit fagitiecause borrowings under all lines
under the facility are variable rate borrowingserally at prime. Assuming that all lines under féality are fully drawn and holding other
variables constant, each 1.0% increase in inteagss on our variable rate borrowings will resalain increase in annual interest expense and &
decrease in our cash flows and income before tafxagproximately $0.2 million per year. We do neewlerivative instruments to hedge the
interest rate risk related to our credit facility.

We have invested most of the proceeds of our Inptidlic offering in securities which may be sultjecmarket risk for changes in inter
rates. To mitigate this risk, we maintain a portfaf cash equivalents and short-term investmeantsvariety of securities, which include
commercial paper, money market funds, governmethinam-government debt securities. Currently, weeaposed to minimal market risks.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolid&etities or financial partnerships, such as iestitften referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlaeen established for the purpose of facilitatifighalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. In adsitiwe do not have any undisclosed borrowings bt,@nd we have not entered into any
synthetic leases. We are, therefore, not materadposed to any financing, liquidity, market orditeisk that could arise if we had engaged in
such relationships.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure

Not Applicable.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosairControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disctestontrols and procedures, as such term is definBdile 13a-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as of the etftegieriod covered by this report. Based on thiduation, our principal executive officer
and our principal financial officer concluded tloatr disclosure controls and procedures were effects of December 30, 2006.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

This annual report does not include a report ofagaments assessment regarding internal control over filmhneporting or an attestati
report of our independent registered public acdagrfirm due to a transition period establishedgs of the Securities and Exchange
Commission for newly public companies.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during the fourth quarter afdal 2006 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, anternal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information

Not Applicable.

PART IlI

Certain information required by this Part Ill is itted from this Annual Report as we will file ouefthitive Proxy Statement for our
Annual Meeting of Stockholders pursuant to Regafafi4A of the Exchange Act not later than 120 deffexr the end of the fiscal year covered
by this Annual Report, and certain information urd#d in the Proxy Statement is incorporated hdygireference.

Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

We incorporate by reference herein the sectiorifesht Election Of Directors,” “Board Of Directorgudit Committee Financial Expert”
And “Other Information—Section 16(a) Beneficial Osvehip Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement

We have adopted a “Code of Business Conduct arids€Etthat applies to all employees, including oxeeutive officers. A copy of the
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is posted ointernet site at www.netlist.com. In the everdtttve make any amendment to, or grant
any waivers of, a provision of the Code of Busin@esduct and Ethics that applies to the principakative officer, principal financial officer,
or principal accounting officer that requires disire under applicable Securities and Exchangeues, we intend to disclose such
amendment or waiver and the reasons therefor omtemnet site.

41




ltem 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this Item is incorp@cherein by reference to the section entitled tatige Compensation” and “Directors
Compensation” in our Proxy Statement.
Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is incorp@cherein by reference to the section entitled ti88cOwnership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Piformation” in our Proxy Statement.
ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information required by this Item is incorp@cherein by reference to the section entitled t&emRelationships and Related
Transactions” in our Proxy Statement.
Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the section entitled ‘ifard, Audit Fees and Auditor
Independence” in our Proxy Statement.

PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@)(1) Allfinancial statements filed as pafrthts report.
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings F-2
Consolidated Balance She F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operati F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc F-7

(@)(2) Allfinancial statement schedules fikipart of this report.

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings on Financial Stateme
Schedule F-29

Schedule —Valuation and Qualifying Accoun F-30
All other schedules for which provision is madehie applicable accounting regulations of the Corsiaisare not required under the
related instructions, are inapplicable or not mateor the information called for thereby is otiwése included in the consolidated financial
statements, and therefore have been omitted.
(@)(@3) Exhibits

3.1(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Netlistc.l
3.2(1) Amended and Restated Bylaws of Netlist, |
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10.1(2)

10.2 (2)
10.3 (2)
10.4 (2)
105 (2)
10.6 (2)

10.7(1)#
10.8(2)#

10.9 (2)
10.10 (3)
10.11 (2)

10.12(2)
10.13(3)#
10.14 (3)#

10.15 (3)#

10.16(1)#
10.17 (1)

10.18(1)
10.19(1)
10.20(1)
10.21

14.1(1)
21.1(2)
23.1

Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreerdated as of December 27, 2003, among
Netlist, Inc., Netlist Technology Texas, L.I"Netlist Texas”), and Wells Fargo Business
Credit, Inc. “Wells Farg(").

First Amendment to Amended and Restated CreditSautirity Agreement, dated as of June 30,
2004, among Netlist, Inc., Netlist Texas and WEHsgo.

Second Amendment to Credit and Security Agreemeadtsaiver of Defaults, dated as of
December 20, 2005, among Netlist, Inc., Netlistd®and Wells Farg:

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated CreditSewlirity Agreement, dated as of
February 14, 2006, among Netlist, Inc., Netlist d&and Wells Farg:

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated CrediSaedrity Agreement and Waiver of
Defaults, dated as of April 18, 2006, among Netlist., Netlist Texas and Wells Far¢

Fifth Amendment to Amended and Restated CreditSewlrity Agreement, dated as of July 28,
2006, among Netlist, Inc., Netlist Texas and WEHsgo.

Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plavedlist, Inc.

Letter agreement regarding employment, dated Jariiar2006, between Netlist, Inc. and Lee
Kim.

Full-time Permanent Engagement Resources Agreematet] as of January 10, 2006, between
Netlist, Inc. and Tatum, LLC

Master Sales and Supply Agreement, dated as oadaiyu 2004, between Netlist, Inc. and
Netlist Texas

Management Fee Agreement, dated as of January4, Bétween Netlist, Inc. and Netlist
Texas.

Form of Indemnity Agreement for officers and diast
Employment Agreement, dated September 5, 2006 dagtwetlist, Inc. and Chun K. Hor

Form of Performance Incentive Agreement entereal ligtNetlist, Inc. with each of Christopher
Lopes, Jayesh Bhakta and Paik Ki Hong in Augus62

Form of Amendment to Performance Incentive Agredreatered into by Netlist, Inc. with each
of Christopher Lopes, Jayesh Bhakta and Paik KigHarSeptember 200

2006 Equity Incentive Plan of Netlist, Ir

Note Purchase Agreement, dated October 3, 200vekatNetlist, Inc. and Serim Paj
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.“ Serim Pape”).

7.5% Promissory Note, dated October 3, 2005, isbyedetlist, Inc. to Serim Pape
Note Purchase Agreement, dated February 12, 2@d@ebn Netlist, Inc. and Serim Pag
6.5% Promissory Note, dated February 12, 2006etbsy Netlist, Inc. to Serim Pap:

Sixth Amendment to Amended and Restated CreditSmulirity Agreement, dated as of
December 29, 200!

Code of Business Conduct and Eth
Subsidiaries of Netlist, Int
Consent of Corbin & Company, LLI
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23.2 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLI

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on the signature pamgthis Part IV of this report
311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Peri@dReport Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) or
Rule 15¢-15(e).
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of PeriadReport Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) or
Rule 15¢-15(e).
32 Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer of Periodic Report Pursuant

to 18 U.S.C. Section 135

(1) Incorporated by reference to the correspondingléxhumber of the registration statement on Forth@&-the registrant (No. 333-
136735) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdsaion on October 23, 2006.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the correspondingléxhumber of the registration statement on Forth@&-the registrant (No. 333-
136735) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdsaion on August 18, 2006.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the correspondingbétxhumber of the registration statement on Forth@-the registrant (No. 333-
136735) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdsaion on September 27, 2006.

# Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege
(b) Exhibits

See subsection (a)(3) above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

See subsections (a)(1) and (2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized, in the City of Irvine, State ofl@ania, on this 27" day of February, 2007.

NETLIST, INC.

By: /s/ Chun K. Hont
Chun K. Hong
President, Chief Executive Officer a
Chairman of the Boar

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below cosestiémid appoints Chun K. Hong and Lee Kim, jointlg aeverally, each in his own
capacity, his true and lawful attorneys-in-factthafull power of substitution, for him and his nanpdace and stead, in any and all capacities, to
sign any and all amendments (including post-effecimendments) to this report, and to file the samith all exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Semsgiand Exchange Commission, granting unto suchagtirneys-irfact and agents with fu
power and authority to do so and perform each &edyeact and thing requisite and necessary to be @oand about the premises, as fully to
all intents and purposes as he might or could deenson, hereby ratifying and confirming all thaidsattorneys-in-fact, or their substitute or
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this reépas been signed below by the
following persons in the capacities and on theglatdicated:

_Signature Title Date
/s/ Chun K. Hon¢ President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chun K. Honc Chairman of the Board February 27, 2007
(Principal Executive Officer
/sl Lee Kim Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 27, 2007
Lee Kim (Principal Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer)

/s/ Nam Ki Hong Director February 27, 2007
Nam Ki Hong

Director

Thomas F. Lagatt

/s/ Alan H. Portnoy Director February 27, 2007
Alan H. Portnoy

/s/ David M. Rickey Director February 27, 2007
David M. Rickey

/s/ Preston Romr Director February 27, 2007
Preston Romn
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Netlist, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Netlist, Inc. and subsidiaries (themi@any”) as of December 30, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, and the related consolidatéehséats of operations, stockholders’ equity andh ¢@svs for each of the two years in the
period ended December 30, 2006. These consolifiautial statements are the responsibility of@leenpany’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobdated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with starsdairthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@sdited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toiobtasonable assurance about whether the consaliflaancial statements are free of
material misstatement. The Company is not requodthve, nor were we engaged to perform, an andisdnternal control over financial
reporting. Our audits included consideration oéintl control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tln@pse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveréshe Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nolsepinion. An audit includes examining, on a tesdib, evidence supporting the amounts
disclosures in the consolidated financial statesiefah audit also includes assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbeeresolidated financial statement presentatioe. blieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaepferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the consolidated financial position
of Netlist, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December2B06 and December 31, 2005, and the consolidasedts of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the two years in the period enBedember 30, 2006 in conformity with accountinmgiples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated findrat@ements, effective January 1, 2006, the Comphanged its method of accounting for
share-based compensation to adopt Statement afidt&a@ccounting Standards No. 123(Bhare-Based Payment

/s/ CORBIN & COMPANY, LLP
Irvine, California
February 27, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Netlist, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated statements oatipas, stockholders’ equity and cash flows of gtinc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) for the year ended January 1, 2005.seheonsolidated financial statements are the radpitity of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on dalit.au

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the consdlifiatincial statements are free of mat
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivdl control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigranglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compaimg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aullibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements, assesssgdbounting principles used and significant egesianade by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@naWe believe that our audit provides a reastmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the results of the Company’s
operations and its cash flows for the year endadaly 1, 2005, in conformity with accounting pripleis generally accepted in the United
States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Costa Mesa, California
March 1, 2006




NETLIST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments in marketable securit
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for salesrrest and doubtful accounts of $1
(2005) and $88 (2006), respectiv:
Inventories
Income taxes receivab
Deferred taxe
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current assets
Property and equipment, r
Deferred taxe
Long-term investments in marketable securi
Other assets
Total asset
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Revolving line of credi
Current portion of lon-term deb
Current portion of deferred gain on sale and leaslkelransactiol
Current portion of convertible notes paya
Income taxes payab
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Deferred gain on sale and leaseback transactiomf meirrent portior
Convertible notes payable, net of current portion
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder’ equity:

December 31

December 30

Series A convertible preferred stock, $2.00 paueat1,000 shares authorized; 1,000

shares issued and outstanding (liquidation preterer $2,000) (2005); no shares

issued and outstanding (20(

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value—10,000 sharémeréd; no shares issued and
outstanding

Common stock, $0.001 par value—90,000 shares améuprl0,673 (2005) and
19,544 (2006) shares issued and outstan

Additional paic-in capital

Note receivable from stockhold

Deferred stoc-based compensatic

Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

2005 2006
$ 953  $ 3097¢
— 5,267
13,14C 23,703
6,816 19,473
259 —
902 1,054
434 988
22,504 81,460
2,437 3,830
759 576
— 1,502
142 326
$ 2584.  $ 87,69
$ 6645  $ 11,68
9,463 19,238
720 1,033
116 118
1,000 —
— 552
1,841 3,255
19,785 35,876
988 1,230
464 344
1,750 —
22,987 37,450
2,000 —
11 20
22,604 66,557
(23) (1)
(337) —
(21,400) (16,332)
2,855 50,244
$ 2584.  $ 87,69

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigsents.
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NETLIST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended
December 31 December 30
January 1,
2005 2005 2006
Net sales $143,65¢ $79,85¢ $151,44¢
Cost of sales(1 133,50: 73,892 129,18
Gross profit 10,15¢ 5,964 22,261
Operating expense
Research and development 3,77C 2,961 3,31t
Selling, general and administrative(1) 6,314 5,062 9,191
Total operating expens 10,08 8,023 12,50¢
Operating income (loss) 72 (2,059) 9,761
Other income (expense
Interest expense, net of interest incc (1,071) (1,221) (1,82%)
Other income (expense), r (315) 21 (29)
Total other expense, net (1,38€) (1,200) (1,849
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for incotares (1,319 (3,259) 7,912
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (340) (912) 2,844
Net income (loss $  (9749) $ (2,347) $ 5,06¢
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ (0.09) $ (0.22) $ 043
Diluted $ (0.09) $ (0.22) $ 034
Weightec-average common shares outstand
Basic 10,671 10,672 11,70¢
Diluted 10,671 10,672 15,331
(1) Amounts include stock-based compensation expenkslaws:
Cost of sale: $ 29 $ 56 $ 104
Research and developme 80 (52) 125
Selling, general and administrati 141 (65) 363

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisents.
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Balance, December 27, 2003

Forfeiture of stock options and warra
Amortization of deferred sto-based compensatic
Exercise of stock optior

Interest from stockholder notes receiva
Payment of interest on stockholder note receiv
Net loss

Balance, January 1, 2005

Issuance of stock options to nonemploy
Forfeiture of stock options and warra
Amortization of deferred sto-based compensatic
Exercise of stock optior

Interest from stockholder note receiva

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2005

Reclassification of deferred stock-based
compensation upon adoption of SFAS No. 123
(R)

Estimated relative fair value of beneficial
conversion feature on convertible note pay:

Stock-based compensatic

Interest from stockholder notes receiva

Payment on stockholders notes receivi

Exercise of warrant

Issuance of common stock in connection with
conversion of note payable and accrued inte

Tax benefit from exercise of warrar

Issuance of common stock in an initial public
offering (net of underwriters’ discounts and
offering expenses

Conversion of preferred stoi

Conversion of debt at initial public offerir

Net income

Balance, December 30, 2006

NETLIST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands)

Series A Notes
Preferred Additional Receivable Deferred Net
Stock Common Stock Paid-in From Stock-Based ~ Accumulated  Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Stockholders ~ Compensation Deficit Equity
1,000 $ 2,000 10,65C $11 $24,65€ $(22) $ (2,585) $ (18,079 $ 5,981
— — — — (1,335) — 943 — (392)
— — — — — — 642 — 642
— — 22 — 4 — — — 4
- - - - - ® - - @
— — — — — 1 — — 1
— — — — — — — (974) (974)
1,000 2,000 10,672 11 23,32 (22) (1,000) (19,053 5,261
— — — — 6 — 6) — —
— — — — (730) — 454 — (276)
— — — — — 215 — 215
— — 1 — 3 — — — 3
= = = = (e = = @)
— — — — — — — (2,347 (2,347
1,000 2,000 10,677 11 22,604 (23) (337) (21,400) 2,855
— — — — (337) — 337 — —
— — - = 50 — — — 50
— — — — 592 — — — 592
- - - - - & - - @)
23 23
— — 550 — 110 — — — 110
— — 21 — 53 — — — 53
— — — — 203 — — — 203
— — 6,250 6 39,53t — — — 39,541
(1,000) (2,000) 1,000 1 1,999 — — — —
1,050 2 1,748 — — — 1,750
— — — — — — — 5,068 5,068
— $  — 19,544 $20 $ 66,557 $ @ $ - ($16,332) $50,244

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)

NETLIST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rethcused in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of deferred gain on sale and leaselemisaction

Deferred income taxes
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Stock-based compensation
Interest on notes receivable from stockholders
Amortization of debt discount
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable
Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of equipment

Repayment of note receivable shareholder

Purchase of investments in marketable securities
Purchase of investments in long term marketablaritées
Proceeds from sale and leaseback of facility

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Borrowings on lines of credit

Payments on lines of credit

Borrowings from debt

Payments on debt

Proceeds from convertible notes payable

Repayment of convertible notes payable

Proceeds from exercise of stock options and wasrant
Tax benefit from exercise of warrants

Proceeds from initial public offering, net of ofieg costs
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the period for:
Interest
Income taxes

Purchase of insurance policies through notes payabl
Deferred gain on sale and leaseback of facility

Estimated relative fair value of beneficial convensfeature on convertible note payable
Issuance of common stock in connection with coriearsf note payable and accrued interest

Preferred stock conversion
Conversion of notes payable into common stock

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing arahting activities:
Purchase of equipment through capitalized leasgatinns

Year Ended
December 31 December 30
January 1,

2005 2005 2006
$ (974) $ (2,347) $  5,06€
867 1,031 972
— — (118)

218 (682) 31

43 (11) 30

250 (61) 592
— (1) (1)

— — 50
(3,570) (4,327) (10,563)
2,704 526 (12,657)
(493) 234 259
(116) 99 (268)
(7) (85) (184)
(3,032 921 5,035
(2,634) — 552
177 95 1,417
___(6,567) (4,608) (9,785)
(557) (484) (2,500)

61 19 218

— — 23
— — (5,267)
_ — (1,502)

— 1,797 —
(496) 1,332 (9,028)
146,48¢ 82,01t 159,68(
(141,04%) (77,995) (149,90¢
820 — 3,073
(348) (1,553) (2,917)

— 1,000 —
— — (950)

— 3 110

— — 203

— — 39,541
5,915 3,470 48,83t
(1,148) 194 30,022
1,907 759 953

$ 759 $ 953 $ 30,97t
$ 1,061 $  1,16¢ $  2,01C
$  3.40C $ 2 $ 1,804
$ 184 $ 837 $ 113
$ — $ 238 $ 286
$ — $ 580 $ —
$ — $ — $ 50
$ — $ — $ 53
$ — $ — $  2,00C
$ — $ — $  1,75C

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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NETLIST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1—DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
Description of Business

Netlist, Inc. (the “Company” or “Netlist”) was ingeorated on June 12, 2000 in Delaware. Netlistghssand manufactures high
performance memory subsystems for the server, egformance computing and communications markéts.Gompany’s solutions are
targeted at applications where memory plays a &kyin meeting system performance requirements.

In December 2006, the Company sold 6,250,000 afitsmon shares in its initial public offering at@ffering price of $7.00 per share,
resulting in proceeds of $39.5 million, net of urwidters’ discounts and offering expenses of appnaxely $4.2 million.
NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieste been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in 1
United States of America.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Netlist, Inc. and its wholly owned sulisiies, Netlist Holdings GP, Inc.,
Netlist Holdings LP, Inc., Netlist Technology TexaB, and Netlist International. All intercompanyldreces and transactions have b
eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company changefisital year from a calendar year to a 52/53-westadfi year ending on the Saturday
closest to December 31. The 2004, 2005 and 2006él figars ended on January 1, 2005, December 85,&td December 30, 2006,
respectively, and consisted of 52 weeks.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assusi it affect the reported amounts of the assetdiabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitmancial statements, and the reported amountsvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Significant estimates made by managemehide, among others, provisions for uncollectilgegivables and sales returns, valuatio
inventories, recoverability of long-lived assetsl aealization of deferred tax assets. Actual restduld differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments in MabketSecurities

The Company invests its excess cash in money mankds and in highly liquid debt instruments of Un®unicipalities, corporations and
the U.S. government and its agencies. All highduilil investments with stated maturities of threenths or less from date of purchase are
classified as cash equivalents; all highly liguidestments with stated maturities of greater tha@et months are classified as investments in
marketable securities.

The Company determines that appropriate classificatf its investments in marketable debt secwitiethe time of purchase and
reevaluates such designation at each balance déeefThe
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Company’s marketable debt securities have beesifitaband accounted for as available-for-sale h@asemanagemergtinvestment intentior
relating to these securities. Available-for-saleusities are stated at market value based on mgtl@es. Unrealized gains and losses, net of
deferred taxes, have not been significant andbeiliecorded as a component of other comprehensioaie.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of the Company’s cash and cashvatgrits, accounts receivable, marketable secyra@ounts payable and accrued
expenses approximate carrying values due to theit snaturities. The fair value of the Company’stdastruments approximates their
carrying values based on rates currently availabtee Company.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to significant concentrations of credik iensist principally of cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities, and accoun&vable.

The Company invests primarily in money market fuadd high quality commercial paper and other deftriments. Cash equivalents
maintained with high quality institutions, the coosfition and maturities of which are regularly mon#d by management. Investments in
marketable securities are in high-credit qualititdastruments with an active resale market. Sngkstments are made only in instruments
issued or enhanced by high-quality institutionse @ompany has not incurred any credit risk losekeged to these investments.

The Company’s trade accounts receivable are priynderived from sales to original equipment mantdeers (“OEMSs”) in the computer
industry. The Company performs credit evaluatioiissocustomers’ financial condition and limits tamount of credit extended when deemed
necessary but generally requires no collateral. Gtmpany believes that the concentration of créglitin its trade receivables is moderated by
the Company’s credit evaluation process, relatigblgrt collection terms and the high level of credirthiness of its customers.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost orraatizable value. Cost is determined on a firsfinst-out basis and includes raw materi
labor and manufacturing overhead. At each balaheetdate, the Company evaluates its ending inviestfor excess quantities and
obsolescence. This evaluation includes an anatysales levels by product type. Among other fagttite Company considers historical
demand and forecasted demand in relation to thenbovy on hand, competitiveness of product offesjngarket conditions and product life
cycles when determining obsolescence and net adddiz/alue. Provisions are made to reduce excesissaiete inventories to their estimated
net realizable values. Once established, wiitens are considered permanent adjustments tm8idasis of the excess or obsolete inventc

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost aneciaped on a straight-line basis over their edichaiseful lives, which generally range
from three to seven years. Leasehold improvementsegorded at cost and amortized on a straightHasis over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives or the remaining lease term.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets held agd loxg the Company for impairment on an annual b@sighenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their net book vahasy not be recoverable. When such factors androistances exist, the Company compares
the projected undiscounted future cash flows aasetiwith the related asset or group of assetstbearestimated useful lives against their
respective carrying amount. Impairment, if anyhased on the excess of the carrying amount ovdathealue, based on market value when
available, or discounted expected cash flows, ed¢hassets and is recorded in the period in whigllétermination is made. At December 31,
2005 and December 30, 2006, the Company’s manaddmakeves there is no impairment of its long-liwestets. There can be no assurance,
however, that market conditions will not changelemand for the Company’s products will continuejolitcould result in future impairment
of long-lived assets.

Revenue Recognition

The Companys revenues primarily consist of product sales ghlgerformance memory subsystems to OEMs. Revaisesnclude sale
of excess inventories to distributors and othersieémemory ICs totaling approximately $28,016,0809,127,000, $11,424,000 during the
years ended January 1, 2005, December 31, 200Bbeceber 30, 2006, respective

The Company recognizes revenues in accordancethétBecurities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Anting Bulletin (“SAB”)
No. 104,Revenue Recognitiarunder the provisions of SAB No. 104, the Compeagognizes revenues when there is persuasive exdds#n
an arrangement, product delivery and acceptance deaurred, the sales price is fixed or determimadnhd collectibility of the resulting
receivable is reasonably assured.

For all sales, the Company uses a binding purchiaer as evidence of an arrangement. Delivery soatien goods are shipped for
customers with FOB Shipping Point terms and upaeeip for customers with FOB Destination termsyhich time title and risk of loss
transfer to the customer. Shipping documents azd tesverify delivery and customer acceptance. Chmpany assesses whether the sales
price is fixed or determinable based on the payrteants associated with the transaction and whefigesales price is subject to refund.
Customers are generally allowed limited rightsettirn for up to 30 days, except for sales of exgesmtories, which contain no right-of-
return privileges. Estimated returns are providedat the time of sale based on historical expeder specific identification of an event
necessitating a reserve. Returns from customers hatvbeen material in any period as the Compamyreipal customers have adopted build-
to-order manufacturing models or just-in-time masragnt processes. The Company offers a standardgiradrranty to its customers and has
no other post-shipment obligations. The Compangsses collectibility based on the creditworthingshe customer as determined by credit
checks and evaluations, as well as the customayspnt history.

Most of the Company’s international shipments aeglento third-party inventory warehouses, or hubd,the Company recognizes
revenue when the inventory is pulled from the hubulse in production by the customer. The Compangives a report from the customer ¢
daily basis indicating the inventories pulled frarhub for use by the customer, and performs a dedgnciliation of inventories shipped to ¢
pulled by the customer to those inventories refléain the customer’s reports to ensure that saedeeaognized in the appropriate periods.

All amounts billed to customers related to shippamgl handling are classified as revenues, whileasils incurred by the Company for
shipping and handling are classified as cost @&fssal




Warranties

The Company offers warranties generally rangingfane to three years to its customers, other thasates of excess inventory,
depending on the product and negotiated termsmwhpase agreements. Such warranties require the &uorip repair or replace defective
product returned to the Company during such wayrpatiod at no cost to the customer. An estimatéhbyCompany for warranty related costs
is recorded by the Company at the time of saledaséts historical and estimated product retutaga@and expected repair or replacement
costs. Such costs have historically been insiggnific

Beneficial Conversion Feature

The convertible feature of one of the Company’svertible notes provided for a rate of conversiaat thas below market value (see
Note 8). Such feature is normally characterized“beneficial conversion feature” (“‘BCF”). PursuantEmerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
Issue No. 98-5Accounting for Convertible Securities with Benafi€€onversion Features or Contingently Adjustabn@ersion Ratiand
EITF No. 00-27 Application of EITF Issue No. 98-5 to Certain CoriNxe Instruments the estimated relative fair value of the BCF was
recorded as a discount from the face amount ofdineertible note. The Company amortized the distasimg the effective interest method
through the conversion of such instrument.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for equity issuances to ngulegmes in accordance with Statement of Financtofinting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 123,Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatiand EITF No. 96-18\ccounting for Equity Instruments that are Issus@®ther Than
Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with I8, Goods and Service. All transactions in which goods or services & donsideration
received for the issuance of equity instrumentsaamunted for based on the fair value of the ctamation received or the fair value of the
equity instrument issued, whichever is more rejiabkasurable. The measurement date used to deeeti@riair value of the equity instrum
issued is the earlier of the date on which theltparty performance is complete or the date on lwhits probable that performance will occur.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accountedtfmk-based compensation issued to employees tharigtrinsic value method of
accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Bio@pinion (“APB”) No. 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeasd related
pronouncements (see Note 13). Under this methadpeasation expense was recognized over the regpeetsting period based on the
excess, on the date of grant, of the estimated/&hire of the Company’s common stock over the gpaice, net of forfeitures. Deferred stock-
based compensation expense was amortized on ghstliaie basis over the vesting period of each gfaaring the years ended January 1,
2005 and December 31, 2005, stock-based compensadiense, net of forfeitures, was approximateBy0$200 and $(61,000), respectively.

Under SFAS No. 123, entities were required to racmgas expense over the vesting period the féirevaf all stock-based awards on the
date of the grant. Alternatively, SFAS No. 123 a#al entities to continue to apply the provision&BB No. 25 and provide pro forma net
income (loss) disclosures for employee stock opgi@mts as if the fair value based method defin€eHAS No. 123 had been applied. The
Company has elected to apply the provisions of ARB25 and provide pro forma disclosures requine@BAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148,
Accounting for Stoc-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure

Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock-basedds to employees been determined based ostiheated fair value at the grant
dates consistent with the fair value method of SN&S 123, the
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Company'’s net loss for the years ended Januar§@g and December 31, 2005 would have approximaggrio forma amounts indicated
below (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended
December 31
January 1,
2005 2005

Net loss, as reporte $ (974 $(2,347)
Plus: stoc-based employee compensation expense included onteg)

net loss, net of ta 185 (44)
Less: stocksased employee compensation expense determined fairc

value based method, net of 1 (470) 354
Pro forma net loss $(1,259) $(2,037)
Net loss per common share as repor

Basic $ (0.09 $ (0.22)

Diluted $ (0.09) $ (0.22)
Pro forma:

Basic $ (0.12 $ (0.19)

Diluted $ (0.12) $ (0.19)

The fair value of options granted under the Compmeguity incentive plan during the years endedidanl, 2005 and December 31,
2005 was estimated on the date of grant using thekBScholes option-pricing model utilizing the glie option approach using the following
weighted-average assumptions:

January 1,
December 31
2005 2005
Weightec-average ris-free rate n/a 4.13%
Expected tern n/a 10 year:
Expected stock volatilit n/a 24%
Dividend yield n/a —

There were no options granted during fiscal 2004.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SNASL23(R)Share-Based Paymenivhich establishes standards for the accounting
of transactions in which an entity exchanges itgtggnstruments for goods or services, primardgdsing on accounting for transactions wl
an entity obtains employee services in share-bpagghent transactions. SFAS No. 123(R) requireshdi@antity to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for an awfaeduity instruments, including stock optionsséa on the grant-date fair value of the
award and to recognize it as compensation expereettee period the employee is required to progieleice in exchange for the award,
usually the vesting period. SFAS No. 123(R) sumigséhe Company'’s previous accounting under APB28dor periods beginning in fiscal
2006. In March 2005, the Securities and Exchangar@igsion issued SAB No. 108hare-Based Paymentelating to SFAS No. 123(R). The
Company has applied the provisions of SAB No. 10ifsi adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the nsatifrospective transition method, which requitesapplication of the
accounting standard as of January 1, 2006, thedfing of the Company’s fiscal year 2006. The Comgfsaconsolidated financial statements as
of and for the year ended December 30, 2006 retthecimpact of adopting SFAS No. 123(R). In accamgawith the modified prospective
transition method, the Company’s consolidated foi@rstatements for prior periods have not beetated to reflect, and do not include, the
impact of SFAS No. 123(R).
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SFAS No. 123(R) requires companies to estimatédaihealue of share-based payment awards on theafagrant using an option-pricing
model. The value of the portion of the award tkaitltimately expected to vest is recognized as res@ever the requisite service periods in the
Company’s consolidated statement of operationsr Ruithe adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Compaogounted for stock-based awards to
employees and directors using the intrinsic vale¢hmd in accordance with APB No. 25 as allowed ug#AS No. 123. Under this method,
stock-based compensation expense had been recdgmitee Company’s consolidated statements of diperafor option grants to employees
and consultants below the fair market value ofuhéerlying stock at the date of grant.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized dhwengeriod is based on the value of the portioghafre-based payment awards that is
ultimately expected to vest during the period. &tbased compensation expense recognized in the &oyigpconsolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 30, 2006dad compensation expense for share-based paywands granted prior to, but not yet
vested as of December 31, 2005 based on the gagnfalr value estimated in accordance with thefpnma provisions of SFAS No. 123 and
compensation expense for the share-based paymandsgranted subsequent to December 31, 2005 bagbé grant date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions of SRES123(R). As stock-based compensation expemsgnized in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended DeceBMe2006 is based on awards ultimately expectegst it has been reduced for estimated
forfeitures. SFAS No. 123(R) requires forfeiturede estimated at the time of grant and revisetggessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. The estédaaverage forfeiture rate for the year ended Béee 30, 2006 of approximately 8% was
based on historical forfeiture experience and extioh future employee forfeitures. The estimateuh tefr option grants for the year ended
December 30, 2006 was six years. In the Companmg'$gsma information required under SFAS No. 128tfe periods prior to fiscal 2006,
the Company accounted for forfeitures as they oedur

Pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R), deferred stock-baseatbensation expense with a balance of $337,00@e¢m@ber 31, 2005 was
eliminated against additional paid-in capital uploa adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 200@. deferred stock-based compensation
expense was primarily related to stock awards grhttd various employees and directors prior tcathaption of SFAS No. 123(R).

The fair value of stock-based awards to employedsdirectors is calculated using the Black-Scholetson pricing model. The Black-
Scholes model requires subjective assumptions degafuture stock price volatility and expectedeino exercise, which greatly affect the
calculated values. The expected term of optionstgchis derived from historical data on employeereises and post-vesting employment
termination behavior. The risk-free rate selectedalue any particular grant is based on the Ur8adury rate that corresponds to the pricing
term of the grant effective as of the date of theng The expected volatility for the year ended®&eber 30, 2006 is based on the historical
volatilities of the common stock of comparable pelpltraded companies. These factors could chandes future, affecting the determination
of stock-based compensation expense in future grio

Year
December 30,
2006
Expected tern 6 year:
Expected volatility 43%
Risk-free interest rat 4.55%-4.97%

Expected dividend —
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A summary of option activity as of December 30, 2@0d changes during the year then ended, is gessbalow (dollars and shares in
thousands, except per share data):

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Contractual
Average Aggregate
Exercise Term Intrinsic
Shares Price (Years) Value
Options outstanding at January 1, 2006 2,19C $1.26
Options grante: 1,47¢ $6.1¢€
Options exercise — $ —
Options forfeited (350) $2.1¢
Options outstanding at December 30, 2 3,31€ $3.3/ 7.62 $ 15,45¢
Options exercisable at December 30, 2 1,424 $0.74 5.48 $10,33¢
Options vested and expected to vest at Decembt
2006 3,167 $3.25 7.67 $15,052

The weighted-average grant date fair value of otigranted during the year ended December 30, ®88652.98 per option. The total
intrinsic value of options exercised during theryeaded December 30, 2006 was zero as no optioresexercised during the period. Upon the
exercise of options, the Company issues new sffiamesits authorized shares.

As of December 30, 2006, there was approximate)g83000 of total unrecognized compensation cattphestimated expected
forfeitures, related to employee and director stoption compensation arrangements. That cost isagd to be recognized on a straight-line
basis over the next 4 years. The total fair valughares vested less estimated forfeitures duhagéar ended December 30, 2006 was
approximately $592,000.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on Jandar3006, the Company’s income before provisionrioome taxes and net income for
the year ended December 30, 2006 were approxim@4&y,000 and $308,000 lower, respectively, thanhiéd continued to account for share-
based compensation under APB No. 25. Basic netieqoer share for the year ended December 30, 288@&pproximately $0.03 lower than
if the Company had continued to account for shasetd compensation under APB No. 25. Diluted netriveper share for the year ended
December 30, 2006 was approximately $0.02 lowertdilee adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

The following table summarizes stock-based compersaxpense related to employee and director stptions under SFAS No. 123
(R) for the year ended December 30, 2006, whichallasated as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 30,
2006
Stoclk-based compensation expense include:
Cost of sale: $ 104
Research and developme 125
Selling, general and administrati 363

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS No. 109Accounting for Income Taxe&/nder SFAS No. 109, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized to reflee estimated future tax effects, calculateduatently effective tax rates, of future deductibt
taxable amounts
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attributable to events that have been recognizeal @mulative basis in the consolidated finandetesnents. A valuation allowance related
deferred tax asset is recorded when it is moréylitean not that some portion of the deferred tsseawill not be realized.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes all changssoickholders’ equity during a period from nowner sources. For the years Janua
2005, December 30, 2005 and December 30, 2006 weneno differences between the Company’s nenirec@ioss) and its comprehensive
income (loss).

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculateditiging net income (loss) by the weighted-averahares outstanding during the period.
Diluted net income (loss) per share is calculatediliding the net income (loss) by the weighte@age shares and dilutive potential shares
outstanding during the period. Dilutive potentiahges consist of dilutive shares issuable uporxieecise of outstanding stock options
computed using the treasury stock method and skemeable upon the conversion of notes payableyubim “if converted” method. All
potentially dilutive shares of approximately 4,00 and 3,632,000 during the years ended Janu@§05, and December 30, 2005,
respectively, have been excluded from diluted fesshare as their effect would be anti-dilutivetfe periods then ended. Potentially dilutive
shares of approximately 3,626,000 for the year eémkrember 30, 2006 have been included in theedilnet income per share computatior
the period then ended.

The following table sets forth for all periods prated the computation of basic and diluted netrimedloss) per share, including the
reconciliation of the numerator and denominatodiaehe calculation of basic and diluted net ineoftess) per share (in thousands, excep
share data):

Year Ended
December 31 December 30
January 1,
2005 2005 2006
Basic income (loss) per sha
Net income (loss $ (979 $(2,34) $ 5,06¢
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 10,671 10,67 11,70
Basic income (loss) per share $ (0.09) $(0.27) $ 0.4:
Diluted income (loss) per shai
Net income (loss $ 979 $(2,34) $ 5,06¢
Convertible notes interest expense (net of — — 74
Adjusted net income (loss) available to common
stockholder: $ (979  $(2,34) $ 5,142
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 10,671 10,67° 11,70¢
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options and warrar — — 1,72z
Convertible preferred stoc — — 929
Convertible notes payab — — 975
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, diluted 10,671 10,67: 15,331
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: $ (0.09) $ (0.22) $ 0.3¢

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No A¢8ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of FASB Statement
No. 109(“FIN 48"), which clarifies the accounting for urtainty in
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income taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition tiolesand measurement attribute for the financetieshent recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in adgéxrn. The Interpretation requires that the Camyg&cognize in the financial statements the
impact of tax position, if that position is morkdly than not of being sustained on audit, basethernechnical merits of the position. FIN 48
also provides guidance on derecognition, classifinainterest and penalties, accounting in intepieniods and disclosure. The provisions of
FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginningeatbecember 15, 2006 with the cumulative effedhefchange in accounting principle
recorded as an adjustment to beginning retainedregy. The Company is currently in the processseeasing the impact the adoption of FIN
48 will have on its consolidated financial statetsen

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishesmé&work
for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disates about fair value measurements. SpecificalAS No. 157 sets forth a definition of
fair value, and establishes a hierarchy prioritizine inputs to valuation techniques, giving thghleist priority to quoted prices in active marl
for identical assets and liabilities and the lowmsrity to unobservable inputs. The provisionsS6fAS No. 157 are generally required to be
applied on a prospective basis, except to cerlaam€ial instruments accounted for under SFAS N8, Accounting for Derivative Instrumer
and Hedging Activitiesfor which the provisions of SFAS No. 157 shouéddpplied retrospectively. The Company will adopAS No. 157 ir
the first quarter of 2008 and is still evaluatihg effect, if any, on its financial position or uéis of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued SAB No, @08sidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemevtien Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statem. SAB No. 108 was issued in order to eliminatediversity in practice surrounding how
public companies quantify financial statement naitsshents. SAB No. 108 requires that registrantatifyaerrors using both a balance sheet
and income statement approach and evaluate whaither approach results in a misstated amountwien all relevant quantitative and
qualitative factors are considered, is materiak @tloption of this statement is not expected t@ lramaterial impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition or results of iiems.

NOTE 3—INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Investments in marketable securities consist ofahewing at December 30, 2006 (in thousands):

U.S. corporate bonc $6,27¢
U.S. treasury/agency debt securities 494
$6,76¢

The contractual maturities of debt securities dfeesbas held to maturity at December 30, 2006sisotlows (in thousands): $5,267 due in
one year or less and $1,502 due in one year throvglyears. Unrealized gains and losses, net @frded taxes, have not been significant.
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NOTE 4—INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following (in thousands)

December 31

December 30

2005 2006
Raw materials $ 2,551 $ 10,51
Work in proces: 1,027 3,343
Finished goods 3,238 5,617
$ 6,81¢ $ 19,47

NOTE 5—PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the followingli@ts in thousands):

Estimated December 31 December 30
Useful
Lives 2005 2006
Machinery and equipment 3-7 yrs. $ 3,59t $5,15:¢
Leasehold improvemen 3yrs. — 44
Furniture and fixture 5yrs. 205 205
Computer equipment and softws 3-7 yrs. 1,241 1,731
5,041 7,13¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (2,609) (3,309
$2,43i $ 3,83(

Included in property and equipment are assets waigtal leases with a cost of $2,618,000 and 080 and accumulated amortization

of $896,000 and $1,176,000 at December 31, 200Pacdmber 30, 2006, respectively.

NOTE 6—CREDIT AGREEMENT

The Company has entered into an agreement (thelltGxgreement”) with a bank which, as amended, jates for a line of credit facility

up to $25 million ($3 million of which may be ingtiorm of letters of credit), limited to 85% ofg@ilble accounts receivable, plus the least of
() a percentage of eligible inventory determineahf time to time by the Company’s bank, (ii) 80%lué orderly liquidation value, as defined,
of eligible inventories, and (iii) $7 million. Intest is payable monthly, at the Company’s optidthee at prime rate plus 0.50% or LIBOR plus
3%. The interest rate was reduced to the primearatéBOR plus 2.50% in December 2006 concurrerthwhie Company’s raise of capital
through an initial public offering (see Note 1).€Tlne of credit facility, as amended, matures aly 31, 2008.

The Credit Agreement also provided for a $2 millierm loan to be funded in two advances. The &idstance of $1 million was made in
August 2006, and the second advance of $1 millias made in September 2006. The term loan prinaipalpayable in equal monthly
installments of $83,350 commencing on Septemb20@6. Interest was payable monthly, at the Comgaoption, either at the prime rate
plus 0.50% or LIBOR plus 3%. The term loan, inchglall accrued and unpaid interest was repaid iceBder 2006 concurrent with the
Company'’s raise of capital through an initial paldifering (see Note 1).

The Credit Agreement also provides for equipmertades up to $2 million. Interest on the equipnahiances is payable monthly, at
the Company’s option, either at the prime rate pl&®% or LIBOR plus 3%. The interest rate was cediuto the prime rate or LIBOR plus
2.50% in December 2006 concurrent with the Compaimytial public offering. Interest only paymentre required on the
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equipment advances through January 31, 2007. CorintgeRebruary 1, 2007, the Company is requireepay the equipment advances in 42
equal monthly installments. The outstanding balatéhis loan was $1,072,000 at December 30, 2686 Kote 7) . The equipment advances,
including all accrued and unpaid interest, areauduly 31, 2008.

Any borrowings are collateralized by a general finsority lien against all Company assets, botigthle and intangible.
Prior to July 2006, the credit agreement providadafrevolving line of credit of $15 million and t&rm loan or equipment line of credit.

Interest was payable monthly at the prime rate PIG8% in fiscal 2004 (5.75% at January 1, 200%)iarfiscal 2005 at the prime rate
4.75% for eligible foreign accounts (12.00% at Deber 31, 2005) and at December 30, 2006 at thesprate (8.25%) and for all other
advances at the prime rate plus 3.50% and prineeptas 0.50% (10.75% at December 31, 2005 and 8&9%cember 30, 2006,
respectively). Outstanding borrowings on this lofieredit at December 31, 2005 and December 306 2@9e $9,463,000 and $19,238,000,
respectively. Borrowing availability under the linkécredit was approximately $2,400,000 and $4 872 at December 31, 2005 and
December 30, 2006, respectively.

The Credit Agreement, as amended, contains caratrictions and covenants. Under these restrigtiord covenants, the Company must
maintain certain levels of tangible net worth, aslei minimum monthly and quarterly profitability,calimit capital expenditures. The Comp:
was not in compliance with certain covenants atdbdwer 31, 2005. Effective April 18, 2006, the Compaxecuted the Fourth Amendment to
Amended and Restated Credit and Security AgreearahWaiver of Defaults (the “Fourth Amendment”) eTlhourth Amendment provides
for, among other things, a waiver of noncompliaasef the dates above and added an additionalreznent for the Company to consummate
a private equity offering not later than March 2007, with minimum net proceeds of $4,000,000.

Effective July 28, 2006, the Company executed tfta Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit awlity Agreement (the “Fifth
Amendment”). The Fifth Amendment eliminated theopGovenant that required the Company to raiseranmiim of $4 million in a private
equity offering prior to March 31, 2007.

Effective December 29, 2006, the Company execltedsixth Amendment to the Amended and RestateditGred Security Agreement
(the “Sixth Amendment”). The Sixth Amendment in@ed the allowable capital expenditures to $2,5@f60the six-month period ended
December 30, 2006 and any fiscal year thereafteoffdecember 30, 2006, the Company was in congaiavith all covenants.

NOTE 7—LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thoonds):

December 31 December 30

2005 2006
Obligations under capital leases (see Note $1,28¢ $ 80
Term note payable to bank (see Nott — 1,07z
Notes payable to othe 423 389

1,708 2,263
Less current portion (720) (1,039

$ 988 $1,23(
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Mortgage Note Payable

In November 2000, the Company obtained an SBA-lth@&eyear mortgage note payable collateralizeddynanufacturing facility in
Irvine, California. This note bore interest at firene rate plus 1.0% (6.25% at January 1, 2005} piincipal and interest payments due
monthly through 2025. In December 2005, the morgags paid in full in connection with the sale &mseback transaction of the
manufacturing facility (see Note 10).

Notes Payable to Others

In November 2002, the Company entered into a $D00Msecured loan agreement with an individualiibganterest at 7% payable
annually, principal due, as amended, in June 200&anuary 2004, $4,000 of the principal amount wsed to exercise certain stock options.
The balance of this note was $96,000 at Janua29d5, December 31, 2005 and December 30, 2006ndtee’s currently due on demand. The
balance of this note and accrued interest wasdépalanuary 2007.

In January 2003, the Company entered into a $300d#h agreement with a financing company, coliized by assets owned by an
employee related to the majority stockholder. Tt bears interest at 14% per annum and matudssimary 2009. Principal and interest
payments of approximately $6,000 are due and payabhthly. The balance of this note was $185,0@0$4r33,000 at December 31, 2005
December 30, 2006, respectively.

In August 2005, the Company entered into an agraemi¢h a financing company in connection with ficéng certain insurance policies.
The financing agreement required monthly princgrad interest payments of approximately $25,000uihamaturity on June 30, 2006. Inte
was payable at 8.55% per annum. The outstandimgipgl balance on this financing was $142,000 atdbeber 31, 2005. During the year
ended December 30, 2006, the balance was rep#itl.iim August 2006, the Company entered into & mgreement with the financing
company to finance its insurance policies. Therfaiag agreement requires monthly principal andregepayments of approximately $32,000
through maturity on June 30, 2007. Interest is pleyat 9.45% per annum. The outstanding principédrxe on this financing was $160,000 at
December 30, 2006.

Capital Leases

The Company has purchased manufacturing and comgaugment through the use of various capitaldeashese leases require
aggregate monthly payments of $44,450 and maturaratus dates through May 2011. The interest ratethese leases vary between 4.3%
and 10.4% (see Note 10).

As of December 30, 2006, maturities of long-terrbtdeere as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
2007 $1,03:
2008 633
2009 373
2010 214
2011 10

Interest expense related to long-term debt was $007 $250,000 and $238,000 for the years endaghdni, 2005 and December 31,
2005 and December 30, 2006, respectively.
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NOTE 8—CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

In April 2001, the Company issued two convertiblerpissory notes, each in the original principal amaof $625,000, to Serim Paper
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Serim Paper”) and Heungdimdustries Co., Ltd. (“HeungHwa"), bearing intgtrat 7.50% per annum (collectively,
the “$625,000 Notes”). In February 2003, the Conypasued an additional $500,000 convertible not8ddm Paper, bearing interest at 6.50%
per annum (the “$500,000 Note”). The $625,000 Natas the $500,000 Note were guaranteed by the Quytgmajority stockholder and
were originally convertible, at the option of thelder, into shares of a new series of preferrecksé a price equal to the lower of $2.50 per
share or the per share fair market value of the pr@fierred stock. In the event of a public offerofghe Companys common stock at a price
excess of the conversion price, the notes wouldmaatically convert into shares of the Company’s gmn stock at the conversion price.

In October 2002 and April 2004, the Company excledrtfie $625,000 Notes (or the applicable succesxtes) for new notes with the
same terms and new maturity dates. In August 20@4Company exchanged the $500,000 Note for a méevwith the same terms and a new
maturity date. Effective October 2005, the Compeaxghanged the then outstanding $625,000 Notessfernotes which provided for a
conversion price of $1.667 per share (estimated/édue of the preferred stock at the effectiveedsftexchange) with new maturity dates of
April 3, 2007. Effective February 2006, the Compamghanged the then outstanding $500,000 Note fiemanote which provided for a
conversion price of $1.667 per share (estimated/édiie of the preferred stock at the effectiveedsftexchange) with a new maturity date of
August 12, 2007. In December 2006, concurrent tighCompany’s raise of capital through an initiablic offering these notes (totaling
$1,750,000) automatically converted to approxinyated50,000 shares of common stock.

In December 2005, the Company issued $1,000,088duared convertible promissory notes (the “200%!9t bearing interest at 9.96%
per annum. The 2005 Notes were secured (suborditathe Credit Agreement) by substantially all @@mpany’s assets. The 2005 Notes
were convertible, at the option of the holder,rat ime after the earlier of (i) the maturity date(ii) the consummation of a private placement
offering of common stock of the Company with graggregate proceeds to the Company of at least $D00. The 2005 Notes were
convertible into shares of the Company’s commonlksgi either the offering price in a private plaegmoffering of the Company’s common
stock, or if no offering, at the fair value of aasé of common stock as determined by the Compdyasd of Directors. In the event of a
merger transaction with a public company concurvétit a private placement offering with gross aggte proceeds of at least $5,000,000, the
outstanding principal and accrued but unpaid ister®uld automatically be converted into sharethefCompany’s common stock at a rate of
67.5% of the price per share at which such shaege sold in the private placement offering. In adaace with EITF No. 00-27, since the
terms of the contingent conversion option do noiiethe Company to compute the additional numbieshares that it would need to issue
upon conversion of the notes if the contingent evecured and the conversion price was adjustedCttmpany determined the value of the
beneficial conversion feature as of the commitnalatdé and would record the beneficial conversionwarhas additional interest expense on
the contingent event occured. The estimated vdltizedbeneficial conversion feature at the commithuate was approximately $500,000.

The 2005 Notes had an original maturity date ofrtraty 28, 2006. In March 2006, the note holdergadto extend the maturity date to
May 31, 2006. In June 2006, a note holder of $3DjAMrincipal agreed to extend the maturity ddtigsoconvertible note until August 31,
2006 and fix the conversion price of the note ab%2er share. In connection with the amendmetie$50,000 convertible note in June 2(
the Company recorded a BCF of $50,000 as a re&fikimg the conversion price at a per share amahbat was below the estimated fair value
of the Company’s common stock at the date of amemtinThe BCF was recorded as a discount from tte daount of the convertible note
and was amortized using the effective interest ntethrough maturity of such instrument. In Augud0@, the
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note holder converted the principal balance of @30,and accrued interest of $3,000 into 20,863eshaf the Company’s common stock. As a
result, the Company recorded interest expense @D$H5 during the year ended December 30, 2006ecktatthe amortization of the debt
discount.

On August 4, 2006, the Company repaid the remai$i#),000 of outstanding principal on the 2005 Npircluding accrued and unpaid
interest of $59,010. As a result of the repaymtirgt,Company will not be required to record anyHartbeneficial conversion charge.
NOTE 9—INCOME TAXES

The Company’s income tax provision (benefit) cotssidf the following (in thousands):

Year Ended
January 1, December 31 December 30
2005 2005 2006
Current:
Federal $ (499 $ (232) $2,77:2
State (59) 2 41
Total current (558) (230) 2,813
Deferred:
Federal 225 (319) (273)
State (7) (363) 304
Total deferred 218 (682) 31
Income tax provision (benefi $ (34C $ (912) $ 2,844

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classidfiedurrent or noncurrent according to the clasgifbo of the related asset or liability.
Significant components of the Company’s deferredaissets and liabilities are as follows at Decen3e2005 and December 30, 2006 (in
thousands):

December 31 December 30

2005 2006
Deferred tax asset
Reserves and allowanc $ 1,04¢ $ 914
Other accrual 73 357
Compensatory stock options and rig 503 546
Tax credit carryforward 249 193
Deferred gair 241 194
NOL carryforward 289 —
Total deferred tax asse 2,401 2,204
Deferred tax liabilities
State taxes, net of federal income tax bet (278) (176)
Depreciation and amortizatic (304) (254)
Prepaid expense (158) (144)
Total deferred tax liabilities (740) (574)
$1,66] $1,63(
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The Company generated federal net operating Iqs8€4 ") of approximately $1,669,000 and $1,071,d00the years ended
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, respectiVbl/federal NOL generated for December 31, 20@bfar January 1, 2005 were carried
back, to December 27, 2003, and fully utilizedatfdition, the Company carried back approximate®3000 of federal credits generated for
the year ended January 1, 2005 to the year endeehteer 27, 2003. At December 30, 2006, the Compgastgte credit carryforward is
approximately $193,000. A reconciliation of incotages computed by applying the statutory U.S. inedax rate to the Company’s income
before income taxes to the income tax provisioméfi® is as follows:

Year Ended
January 1, December 31 December 30

2005 2005 2006
U.S. federal statutory te (35)% (35)% 35%
State taxes, net of federal effi 4) (7 3
Research and development cre: (20) — (2)
Benefit of lower tax rat 1 1 (1)
Stoclk-based compensatic 7 — 1
Loss from foreign subsidiat 14 11 —
Domestic productiol — — (1)
Other 1 _ 3 1
Income tax provision (benefi (26)% (27)% 36%

NOTE 10—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

The Company leases certain of its facilities angiggent under non-cancelable operating leasesghrdlovember 2010. Rental expense
for the years ended January 1, 2005, DecemberO®E, 2nd December 30, 2006 totaled $207,000, $3@340@ $409,000, respectively. The
Company also has capital leases for certain equipme

In December 2005, the Company sold the buildingaioimg its manufacturing facility and the relatadd in Irvine, California to an
unrelated third party for gross proceeds of $1,800, Concurrent with the sale, the Company entiertedan agreement to lease the property
back at an initial monthly rent of $10,000, subjecannual rent increases of 3% through lease atipirin November 2010. The Company is
accounting for the lease as an operating leasmrinection with the sale, the Company recognizgdim of $580,000 which was deferred and
is being amortized into income ratably over theséegerm. During the year ended December 30, 26@6Company amortized $118,000 of the
gain which is recorded as a reduction of rent egpen the accompanying statement of operations.

A summary of future minimum lease commitments aB@fember 30, 2006 is as follows (in thousands):

Operating
Capital

Fiscal Year Leases Leases
2007 $ 507 $173
2008 282 128
2009 70 132
2010 39 124
2011 10 —
Total minimum lease paymer 908 557
Less amount representing interest (106)
Present value of future minimum lease paymentsNste 7) $ 802

F- 22




Litigation

The Company is subject to litigation in the ordinaourse of business. The Company is not currgratyy to any pending litigation
matters.

Other Contingent Obligations

During its normal course of business, the Comparsyrhade certain indemnities, commitments and gtegamunder which it may be
required to make payments in relation to certangactions. These include (i) intellectual propertiemnities to the Compargytustomers ar
licensees in connection with the use, sales atidense of Company products; (ii) indemnities toders and service providers pertaining to
claims based on the negligence or willful miscorichifche Company; (iii) indemnities involving theauracy of representations and warranties
in certain contracts; (iv) indemnities to directared officers of the Company to the maximum expentnitted under the laws of the State of
Delaware; and (v) certain real estate leases, umbigh the Company may be required to indemnifypprty owners for environmental and
other liabilities, and other claims arising frone tBompany’s use of the applicable premises. Thatidur of these indemnities, commitments
and guarantees varies and, in certain cases, magléknite. The majority of these indemnities, goitments and guarantees do not provide
any limitation of the maximum potential for futysayments the Company could be obligated to makstokically, the Company has not been
obligated to make significant payments for thedeggations, and no liabilities have been recordadliese indemnities, commitments and
guarantees in the accompanying consolidated baktrests.

In February 2006, the Company’s former Vice Presidé Finance (the “Former Officer”) submitted nésignation. In order to secure the
services of the Former Officer through an orderdynsition of his responsibilities and in exchangestandard mutual releases of obligations,
the Company entered into a severance agreementheitiormer Officer. The agreement called for thetiouation of the Former Officer’s
salary through December 31, 2006. The Companyralstbursed the Former Officer for the cost of maiining his prior medical insurance
benefits through the earlier of December 31, 200® date on which he obtains medical coveragautiir a new employer. The total cost of
the salary continuation and medical benefits tptowided under the agreement was approximately 049 Under terms of the agreement,
Former Officer was obligated to provide a specifieidimum number of hours of service to the Compaagh month through the end of 2006.
During the year ended December 30, 2006, the Coynpaid $143,000 to the Former Officer in connectidth the severance agreement.

In November 2006, the Company signed a Letter @iiin(“LOI") for the rental of a facility for the @npany’s operation in the People’s
Republic of China. The Company paid a deposit & ®020. This agreement expires February 28, 20@het time the Company will sign a
lease or the offer will expire.

NOTE 11—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In February 2003, the Company loaned an employ8e$0 to exercise a portion of his then-vested comstock options. This full
recourse note bears interest at a rate of 7% payatiually, and is due on February 17, 2008. Aaafember 31, 2005 the amount of
outstanding principal and accrued and unpaid istare this note was approximately $24,000, ancbleas recorded as a reduction of
stockholders’ equity in the consolidated balaneesh In December 2006, the employee repaid aopoofithe note, the amount outstanding at
December 30, 2006 was approximately $1,000.

Interest income related to these loans amountagpeooximately $1,000, $1,000, and $1,000 duringytvees ended January 1, 2005,
December 31, 2005 and December 30, 2006, resplctive
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NOTE 12—STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Issuance of Common Stock for Option and Warrantdises

In 2003, options to purchase 100,000 shares of acomstock were exercised for cash in the amounfl60%nd a full recourse note
receivable in the amount of $19,900, bearing irsteaé 7% per annum, with interest payable annwaity principal due in 2008 (see Note 11
December 2006, principal and accrued interest 8fGE¥0 on this note was repaid. The amount outstanali December 30, 2006 was
approximately $1,000.

In January 2004, options to purchase 20,000 sloregsmmon stock were exercised by forgiving $4,608 $100,000 note due others {
Note 6) in lieu of cash payment for the exercidegrin addition, 1,667 common stock options wetereised for $333 in cas

In May 2005, options to purchase 1,667 shares mwingcon stock were exercised for $3,251 cash.
In March and April 2006, certain warrant holdergmxsed warrants to purchase 550,000 shares of constock for $110,000 cash.

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A”)

The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock automiyicanverted to 1,000,000 shares of Common stgeknicompletion of the
Company’s IPO on December 5, 2006. Prior to the tiee Series A stockholders were entitled to nondative dividends at the rate of $0.16
per share per annum, when, as and if declaredebBdlard of Directors, prior and in preference @ payment of any dividends on common
stock. Shares of Series A were convertible, abtiteon of the holder, into shares of common stacka 1:1 basis. The conversion could occur
at any time after issuance and was automaticallyssetl for stock splits such that the value ofabeverted shares remains unchanged.
Conversion was automatic immediately prior to tlusiog of a public offering of the Compasycommon stock, or at the election of the hol
of a majority of the shares of Series A preferrettls Holders of Series A were entitled to a liqtidn preference, as defined, of $2.00 per
share, plus any declared and unpaid dividendst, friany distribution of assets to holders of commtock. Holders of Series A carried voting
rights on an as-converted basis.

Common Stock

In October 2006, in connection with the Compani?®) the Board of Directors authorized an increagee number of common shares
from 16,000,000 to 90,000,000, effective as of ematingent upon the closing of the IPO. The clogifthe IPO occurred in November 2006.

Serial Preferred Stock

At the completion of the Company’s IPO the Compauthorized 10,000,000 shares of Serial PreferredkStvith a par value of $0.001
per share. No shares were outstanding at Decendb@086.
NOTE 13—STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

Common Stock Options

In November 2000, the Company adopted the 2000t§tndentive Plan (the “2000 Plandnd in October 2006, the Company adoptec
2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”), unddiich direct stock awards or options to acquirash of the Company’s common stock
may be granted to employees and nonemployees @dhgany. The 2000 Plan is administered by the o&birectors or a committee
thereof, and the 2006 Plan is administered by thmgensation Committee of the Board of Directore 2000 Plan permitted the issuance of
up to 5,750,000 shares of the Company’s common
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stock. Effective as of the IPO, no further grantsyrhe made under the 2000 Plan. The 2006 Plan ettmi issuance of a maximum of 500,
shares of common stock, automatically increasintherfirst day of each calendar year beginning roafter January 1, 2007 by the lesser of
(i) 500,000 shares and (ii) such smaller numbeshafes as may be determined by our Board of Diregtdor to that date. Options granted
under the 2000 Plan and 2006 Plan vest over afatleast 20% per year over five years and extiirgears from the date of grant. As of
December 30, 2006, options to purchase 985,000 conaimares were available for future grant unde0@s6 Plan.

Warrants

From time to time, the Company issues warrantoteemployees for services rendered or to be redderthe future. Such warrants are
issued outside of the 2000 Plan and 2006 Planf/Bseoember 30, 2006, there were warrants to puecB8%,500 shares of common stock, of
which 360,000 are fully vested and exercisable. rEimeaining warrants to purchase 37,500 sharesmfran stock vest over a four year per
The weighted-average exercise price of these mdistg warrants was $1.35 per share at Decembe&(R®.

A summary of changes in outstanding common stotiop and warrants during the period from Decen2812003 to December 30,
2006 is presented below (shares in thousands):

Weighted-

Average

Total Exercise

Shares Price

Outstanding—December 28, 2003 2,75C $0.7C
Granted — —
Exercisec (22) $0.20
Canceled (279) $1.72
Outstanding—January 1, 2005 2,44¢ $0.58
Granted 866 $2.55
Exercisec 2 $1.95
Canceled (213) $1.98
Outstanding—December 31, 2005 3,10C $1.04
Granted 1,51¢ $3.01
Exercisec (550) $0.2C
Canceled (350) $2.18
Outstanding—December 30, 2006 3,71F $1.86

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions and warrants outstanding and exera@satbDecember 30, 2006 (shares in
thousands):

Options/Warrants Outstanding Options/Warrants Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted- Weightec-
Exercise Number of Average Number
Remaining Average Average
Price Shares Life (Years) Price of Shares Price
$0.20 1,04E 5 $0.20 1,045 $0.20
$1.00 300 1 $1.00 300 $1.00
$1.25 189 6 $1.25 179 $1.25
$1.95 33 7 $1.95 28 $1.95
$2.55 953 9 $2.55 224 $2.55
$7.00 1,18C 10 $7.00 10 $7.00
$8.00 15 10 $8.00 — $8.00
3,71¢ 1,784
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During fiscal 2003, the Company issued optionsucipase 696,500 shares of common stock to emploersto the difference between
the exercise price and the estimated fair valusbaimon stock, $2,931,000 of deferred compensatiperese was recorded that will be
amortized to expense over the vesting period. @uigtal 2004, 2005 and 2006, the Company recogrnipenpensation expense (net of
forfeitures) of $250,000, ($64,000) and $580,0@xted to these grants.

During fiscal 2005, the Company issued optionsueipase 831,000 shares of the Company’s commok gi@mployees and directors.
The options were granted at exercise prices whigtewegqual to the estimated fair value of the comstook on the date of grant. Therefore, no
stock-based compensation expense was recorded acttompanying consolidated statement of operations

During fiscal 2005 and 2006, the Company issuetboptto purchase 35,000 shares and 20,000 shasp®atively, of the Company’s
common stock to non-employee consultants for sesvio be perfomed over a four year period. Durirgyears ended December 31, 2005 and
December 30, 2006, the Company recognized congudtipense of $3,000 and $3,000, respectively, wikiagtcluded in selling, general and
administrative expenses.

During the year ended December 30, 2006, the Coyngiaamted warrants to purchase 37,500 shares @ahgpany’s common stock to a
consulting firm for services. The estimated failueaof the warrants at the date of issuance usia@tack-Scholes pricing model was
determined to be $60,400 and will be amortizedotesalting expense over a four year vesting pek@mhsulting expense related to these
warrants was $8,900 during the year ended DeceB8the2006 and is included in selling, general andiadstrative expenses.

The weighted-average fair value of common stockoogtand warrants granted during the year ende@émbker 31, 2005 was $0.17. No
common stock options or warrants were granted durscal 2004.

NOTE 14—401(k) PLAN

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribuytian. Employees are eligible to participate in thlan provided they are employed
full-time and have reached 21 years of age. Ppditts may make pre-tax contributions to the pldojesii to a statutorily prescribed annual
limit. Each participant is fully vested in his ogthcontributions on the contributions and investhearnings. The Company may make matc
contributions on the contributions of a participanta discretionary basis. There were ho Compantriboitions made during the three years in
the period ended December 30, 2006.

NOTE 15—MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company’s product sales have historically bemcentrated in a small number of customers. Thewing table sets forth sales to
customers comprising 10% or more of the Comparota tevenues as follows:

Year Ended
January 1, December 31 December 30
2005 2005 2006
Customer
A 71% 35% 38%
B — 13% 2%
C 2% 20% 33%

The Company’s accounts receivable are concentratbdwo customers at December 31, 2005, represgd®% and 17%; and four
customers at December 30, 2006, representing 32%, 14% and 13% of aggregate gross receivablegmisant reduction in sales to, or
the inability to collect receivables from, a sigeaint customer could have a material adverse impathe Company.
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The Companys purchases have historically been concentratadsimall number of suppliers. The following tablesderth purchases fro
suppliers comprising 10% or more of the Compangtaltpurchases as follows:

Year Ended
January 1, December 31, December 30,
2005 2005 2006
Supplier:
A 33% 37% 27%
B 21% 19% 13%
C 13% 19% 5%
D — — 18%

While the Company believes alternative supplierdadde utilized, any inability to obtain componentsproducts in the amounts needed
on a timely basis or at commercially reasonablegsricould result in delays in product introductiangerruption in product shipments or
increases in product costs, which could have anaatedverse effect on the Company.

NOTE 16—SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company operates in one reportable segmenttetsign and manufacture of high-performance mersobgystems for the server,
high-performance computing and communications markéhe Company evaluates financial performance @empany-wide basis. All the
Company'’s international sales relate to shipmehaducts to its U.S. customers’ international ofasturing sites or third-party hubs and are
denominated in U.S. dollars.

As of December 31, 2005 and December 30, 20061adj-lived assets are located in the United States.

NOTE 17—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In January 2007, options to purchase 73,000 conshares were exercised for $89,350.

In February 2007, the Company entered into varamreements for its PRC facility amounting to apprately $2,600,000. As of
February 26, 2007, the Company has paid out $293@0ard these obligations, which include leaselmiprovements and manufacturing

equipment. During March 2007, the Company expe&center into a five year lease commitment on adingl in Suzhou, PRC. The monthly
rent is anticipated to be approximately $12,000.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Netlist, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statésnafiNetlist, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Compagrgs of December 30, 2006 and December
31, 2005, and for each of the two years in theogeended December 30, 2006, and have issued aant tepreon dated February 27, 2007.
Our audits also included the consolidated finarsialement schedule of the Company for the yeatsceBecember 30, 2006 and

December 31, 2005 listed in the accompanying iraddtem 15(a)(2). This consolidated financial sta¢at schedule is the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpian opinion based on our audits. In our opirdooh financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consaididinancial statements taken as a whole, preéainiigin all material respects the

information set forth therein.

/s/ CORBIN & COMPANY, LLP

Irvine, California
February 27, 200
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Netlinc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednseatts of operations, stockholders’ equity and dlasirs of Netlist, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) for the year ended January 1, 28@&% have issued our report thereon dated Marc(f;Zuch report is included elsewhere
in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for ylear ended December 30, 2006. Our audit alsodedhe financial statement schedule
of the Company for the year ended January 1, 28@gdlin the accompanying index at Iltem 15(a)(®jsTonsolidated financial statement
schedule is the responsibility of the Companyilanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspaman based on our audit. In our opinion, s
financial statement schedule, when consideredli@tioe to the basic financial statements descrédealve, taken as a whole, presents fairly, in
all material respects, the information set fortiréin.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Costa Mesa, Californi
March 1, 200¢
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Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (in thousands)

Allowance for sales returns and doubtful
accounts:

Year Ended January 1, 20

Year Ended December 31, 20

Year Ended December 30, 20

Netlist, Inc.

Balance At Balance at
Beginning of Charged to
Cost and End of
Period Expenses (Deductions) Period
$136 $200 $(104) $232
$232 $ 19 $(142) $109
$109 $520 $(541) $ 88
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EXHIBIT10.21

SIXTH AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AND SECURITY AGREEMENT
AND WAIVER OF DEFAULT

This Amendment, dated as of December 29, 2006adenby and between NETLIST, INC., a Delaware cation, and NETLIST
TECHNOLOGY TEXAS, L.P., a Texas limited partnersf@ach a “Borrower” and collectively, the “Borrowgy, on the one hand, and
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (the “Lendéy, acting through its WELLS FARGO BUSINESS CREDdperating
division, on the other hand.

RECITALS

The Borrowers and Wells Fargo Business Credit, lndlinnesota corporation (“WFBCI"), are partiesato Amended and Restated
Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of Dece@be2003, as amended by a First Amendment to Aetadd Restated Credit and
Security Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2004carBleAmendment to Credit and Security Agreement\Wadser of Defaults, dated as of
December 20, 2005, a Third Amendment to CreditSeclrity Agreement, dated as of February 14, 28@&urth Amendment to Credit and
Security Agreement and Waiver of Defaults, datedfaspril 18, 2006, and a Fifth Amendment to Crealitd Security Agreement, dated as of
July 28, 2006 (as so amended, the “Credit Agreethe@apitalized terms used in these recitals theemeanings given to them in the Credit
Agreement unless otherwise specified.

WFBCI has merged with and into Lender and Lend#néssurviving corporation.

The Borrowers have requested that the Lender mailtaic amendments to the Credit Agreement, whietLnder is willing to make
pursuant to the terms and conditions set forthihere

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises aiithe mutual covenants and agreements heretaioed, it is agreed as
follows:

1. Defined Terms.

€) Capitalized terms used in this Ameadtwhich are defined in the Credit Agreement shalle the same meanings as
defined therein, unless otherwise defined herein.

(b) Clause (x) of the definition of “Eiide Accounts” set forth in Section 1.1 of the Gtekhreement is hereby amended in its
entirety as follows:

x) Accounts owed by an Account Debtrdn Affiliate of such Account Debtor),
regardless of whether otherwise eligible, to theeeixthat the balance of such Accounts exceedpdtmntage of the
aggregate amount of all Accounts indicated in #iet below opposite the applicable Account Deldod Accounts
owned by any two Account Debtors (or Affiliatessafch Account Debtors), regardless of whether otisereligible,
to the extent that the combined




balance of such Accounts exceeds 60% of the aggregaount of all Accounts:

Account Debtor or Affiliate

of Such Account Debtor Concentration Limit

Dell Computer Corporatio 40%
(excluding Dell Comput«-Ireland)
Kingston Technolog 40%
Hon Hai Precision Industry Ci 30%
Hewlett Packart 30%
All others 15%
2. Financial Covenants. Clause (c) of Section 6.2 of the Credit Agreemghereby amended in its entirety as follows:
(©) Capital Expenditures. The Borrowers will not incur or contract to imdDapital

Expenditures of more than $2,500,000 in the aggeediaring the period between July 1, 2006 and Déesi81,
2006 and during any fiscal year thereafter.

3. Waiver of Defaults. The Borrower is in default of the following piision of the Credit Agreement (the “Existing Deféijl
Section/Covenant Required Performance Actual Performance
Section 6.2(c) — Maximum Capital $2,000,000 for fiscal year ending $2,125,000 as of November 30,
Expenditure December 31, 200 2006

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions s¢h fa this Amendment, the Lender hereby waivesBkisting Default. This waiver shall be
effective only in this specific instance and foe pecific purpose for which it is given, and thiiver shall not entitle the Borrower to any
other or further waiver in any similar or otherctimstances.

4. No Other Changes. Except as explicitly amended by this Amendmaltpf the terms and conditions of the Credit
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect ahdll apply to any advance or letter of credit¢ader.

5. Conditions Precedent This Amendment, and the waiver set forth in Bexph 3 hereof, shall be effective when the Lender
shall have received an executed original hereof,




together with each of the following, each in substaand form acceptable to the Lender in its sisleretion:

€) The Acknowledgment and Agreementui@dinated Creditors set forth at the end of Arreendment, duly executed by
each Subordinated Creditor.

(b) Such other matters as the Lender regyire.

6. Representations and Warranties Each Borrower hereby represents and warrartsetbhender as follows:

€) Such Borrower has all requisite poaral authority to execute this Amendment, to penfall of its obligations hereunder,

and this Amendment has been duly executed andedetivoy such Borrower and constitute the legalghaid binding obligation of such
Borrower, enforceable in accordance with their &erm

(b) The execution, delivery and perforcaby each Borrower of this Amendment have beey authorized by all necessary
corporate action and do not (i) require any auttation, consent or approval by any governmentaadepent, commission, board, bureau,
agency or instrumentality, domestic or foreign, {iblate any provision of any law, rule or regidator of any order, writ, injunction or decree
presently in effect, having applicability to sucbhrBwer, or the articles of incorporation or by-&wf such Borrower, or (iii) result in a breach
of or constitute a default under any indentureoanlor credit agreement or any other agreemersig leainstrument to which such Borrower is
a party or by which it or its properties may be hdwr affected.

(©) All of the representations and watiescontained in Article V of the Credit Agreemané correct on and as of the date
hereof as though made on and as of such date, texctye extent that such representations and wiéegarelate solely to an earlier date.

7. References All references in the Credit Agreement to “tAigreement”shall be deemed to refer to the Credit Agreeme
amended hereby; and any and all references inagber®y Documents to the Credit Agreement shaliéemed to refer to the Credit Agreen
as amended hereby.

8. No Other Waiver . Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 3dfietiee execution of this Amendment and acceptaif
any documents related hereto shall not be deemiee towaiver of any Default or Event of Default enthe Credit Agreement (except for the
Existing Defaults) or breach, default or event efadilt under any Security Document or other docurhefd by the Lender, whether or not
known to the Lender and whether or not existinghendate of this Amendment.

9. Release

(a) Each Borrower and each Subordinatedli®r by signing the Acknowledgment and Agreenwrubordinated Creditors :
forth below, each hereby absolutely and unconditigrreleases and forever discharges the Lenddraag and all participants, parent




corporations, subsidiary corporations, affiliatedporations, insurers, indemnitors, successorsaanigns thereof, together with all of the
present and former directors, officers, agentsaangloyees of any of the foregoing, from any andlaiims, demands or causes of action of
kind, nature or description, whether arising in lamequity or upon contract or tort or under aratesor federal law or otherwise, which such
Borrower or such Subordinated Creditor has had, nasvor has made claim to have against any susbpéor or by reason of any act,
omission, matter, cause or thing whatsoever arigong the beginning of time to and including theedaf this Amendment, whether such
claims, demands and causes of action are matuneheatured or known or unknown. Each Borrower @ach Subordinated Creditor by
signing the Acknowledgment and Agreement of Submardid Creditors set forth below, each certifies ithaas read the following provisions
California Civil Code Section 1542:

A general release does not extent to claims wihietcteditor does not know or suspect to exist $rféwor
at the time of executing the release, which if kndw him must have materially affected his settletweth
the debtor.

(b) Each Borrower and each Subordinatedii@®r by signing the Acknowledgment and Agreenadrubordinated Creditors
set forth below, each understands and acknowlettigéshe significance and consequence of this waif/€alifornia Civil Code Section 1542
is that even if it should eventually suffer addit damages arising out of the facts referred tivabthey will not be able to make any claim
those damages. Furthermore, each Borrower andSambrdinated Creditor by signing the Acknowledgtreerd Agreement of Subordinated
Creditors set forth below, acknowledges that its these consequences even as to claims for dartieeg may exist as of the date of this
release but which it does not know exist, and whifcknown, would materially affect its decision éaecute this Agreement, regardless of
whether its lack of knowledge is the result of igance, oversight, error, negligence, or any othese.

10. Costs and Expenses The Borrowers hereby reaffirm their agreemermteurthe Credit Agreement to pay or reimburse the
Lender on demand for all costs and expenses irtbgrehe Lender in connection with the Loan Docutagimcluding without limitation all
reasonable fees and disbursements of legal courgighout limiting the generality of the foregoiniine Borrowers specifically agree to pay all
fees and disbursements of counsel to the Lendéhéoservices performed by such counsel in conmeetith the preparation of this
Amendment and the documents and instruments inzEtleereto. The Borrowers hereby agree that theleemay, at any time or from time
time in its sole discretion and without furthertzarization by the Borrowers, make a loan to ther®wsers under the Credit Agreement, or
apply the proceeds of any loan, for the purpogeagfng any such fees, disbursements, costs anchegpe

11. Miscellaneous. This Amendment and the Acknowledgment and Agesgrof Subordinated Creditors may be executed in
any number of counterparts, each of which wherxeowed and delivered shall be deemed an origimébd of which counterparts, taken
together, shall constitute one and the same ingntim

[remainder of this page intentionally left blank]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAmendment to be duly executed as of the degeviritten above.

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION NETLIST, INC.

Through its Wells Fargo Business Cre By: /s/ Chun K. Hong

operating division Name: Chun K. Hong
Its: Presiden

By:  /s/ Josephine Camalii
Name: Josephine Camalie
Its:  Vice Presiden

NETLIST TECHNOLOGY TEXAS, L.P
By: Netlist Holdings GP, Inc
its general partne

By:  /s/ Chun K. Hong
Name: Chun K. Hong
Its: Presiden




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®emgion Statement No. 333-139435 on Form S-8unfreports dated February 27, 2007,
relating to the consolidated financial statements fanancial statement schedule of Netlist, Inad #s subsidiaries, appearing in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K of Netlist, Inc. for the yeaded December 30, 2006.

CORBIN & COMPANY, LLP
Irvine, California
February 27, 2007




EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference inifemgion Statement No. 333-139435 on Fori@ &-our reports dated March 1, 2006 rela
to the consolidated financial statements and firstatement schedule of Netlist, Inc. and sulbsids for the year ended January 1, 2005,
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K oflisgtinc. and subsidiaries for the year ended Deasr 30, 2006.
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Costa Mesa, California
February 27, 2007




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14 OF THE SECURI TIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Chun K. Hong, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2B@6 of Netlist, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lightdafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldich this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaarwl for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The Reglstrant s other certifyindicér and | are responsible for establishing anthtaming disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)Hnd 15d-15(e)) for the Registrant and we have:

a) designed such disafe controls and procedures, or caused such siisel@ontrols and procedures to be designec
under our supervision, to ensure that materiakinédion relating to the Registrant, including ithsolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

b) [intentionally omittén accordance with SEC transition instructionsrfiewly public companies]

c) evaluated the effemess of the Registrant’s disclosure controlsfodedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in thiseepany change in the Registrant’s internal corarar financial reporting that occurred during
the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgi®eant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofammual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regisit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The Registrant’s other certifyindiadr and | have disclosed, based on our most teseaiuation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditonslahe audit committee of the Registrant’s boardigctors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant dgéncies and material weaknesses in the desigpeyation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfect the Registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whethemnot material, that involves management or othepleyees who have a significant role in the
Registrant’s internal control over financial reogt

February 27, 200 /s/ Chun K. Hon¢
Chun K. Hong
President, Chief Executive Officer and ChairmathefBoarc
(Principal Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14 OF THE SECURI TIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Lee Kim, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2B@6 of Netlist, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lightdafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldich this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaarwl for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The Reglstrant s other certifyindicér and | are responsible for establishing anthtaming disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)Hnd 15d-15(e)) for the Registrant and we have:

a) designed such disafe controls and procedures, or caused such siisel@ontrols and procedures to be designec
under our supervision, to ensure that materiakinédion relating to the Registrant, including ithsolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

b) [intentionally omittén accordance with SEC transition instructionsrfiewly public companies]

c) evaluated the effemess of the Registrant’s disclosure controlsfodedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in thiseepany change in the Registrant’s internal corarar financial reporting that occurred during
the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgi®eant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofammual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regisit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The Registrant’s other certifyindiadr and | have disclosed, based on our most teseaiuation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditonslahe audit committee of the Registrant’s boardigctors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant dgéncies and material weaknesses in the desigpeyation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfect the Registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whethemnot material, that involves management or othepleyees who have a significant role in the
Registrant’s internal control over financial reogt

February 27, 200 /sl Lee Kim
Lee Kim
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANEB<LEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fNetlist, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Netlisf9r the fiscal year ended December 30,
2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on February 27, 2007 (the “Report”), ChurHéng, president, chief executive
officer and chairman of the board of Netlist, areklKim, vice president, chief financial officer asetretary of Netlist, each hereby certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipntdo Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act &22@hat, to his knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with thejuérements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Reegairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and results of
operations of Netlist.

February 27, 2007 /s/ Chun K. Hong
Chun K. Hong
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmathef Boarc
(Principal Executive Officer

February 27, 2007 /sl Lee Kim
Lee Kim
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Executive Officer




